
1 

Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk at 448 E. 
1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, Ph.719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AND MEETING OF THE LIQUOR LICENSING AUTHORITY 

448 E. 1st Street, Room 190 
Salida, Colorado 81201 

Tuesday, February 19, 2019 - 6:00 p.m. 
AGENDA 

1. Call to Order
a. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Mayor Wood
b. Roll Call

2. Consent Agenda –
a. Approval of Agenda
b. Approval of Meeting Minutes – February 5, 2019
c. Approval of the 2019 Concrete Maintenance Project
d. Approval of Letter in Support of Partnership Between Salida School District

and CMC

3. Liquor Licensing Authority
a. Public Hearing - Cugi LLC dba Snow Angel Bar & Grill/Hotel & Restaurant

(City) Liquor License Transfer
b. Public Hearing - Little Cambodia LLC dba Little Cambodia/Hotel &

Restaurant (City) Liquor License Application

4. Citizen Comment – 3-minute time limit

5. Unfinished Business
a. Resolution 2019-09 Approving an Annexation Agreement for Treat-Mesch

Annexation (Glen Van Nimwegen)
b. Second Reading of Ordinance 2019-02 Regarding the Treat-Mesch

Annexation of 7.5 Acres at 786 Scott Street (Glen Van Nimwegen)
c. Public Hearing -  Second Reading of Ordinance 2019-03 Regarding the Zoning

of 7.5 Acres Located at 786 Scott Street to R-3, High Density Residential
District (Glen Van Nimwegen)

d. Public Hearing – Second Reading of Ordinance 2019-04 Regarding the
Rezoning of 19.1 Acres Located at 6507 CR 102 from RMU, Residential Mixed
Use to R-4, Manufactured Housing Residential (Glen Van Nimwegen)

6. New Business / Action Items
a. Appeal of Administrator Decision Regarding Water and Sewer System

Development Fees for 1453 K Street (Drew Nelson and Glen Van Nimwegen)



2 

Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk at 448 E. 
1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, Ph.719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

b. First Reading of Ordinance 2019-05 Regarding Municipal Court Code 
Changes (Nina Williams)

c. Employers Council – Human Resources Counsulting Services (Drew Nelson)

7. Councilmembers’ and Mayor’s Reports
Mike Bowers, Dan Shore, Jane Templeton, Justin Critelli, Cheryl Brown-
Kovacic, Harald Kasper, Mayor P.T. Wood.  

8. Staff Reports

9. Adjourn

[SEAL] 

___________________________________ ____________________________________ 
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk  Mayor P.T. Wood 



1 
 

February 5, 2019 Minutes 
 

  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
AND MEETINGS OF THE LIQUOR LICENSING AUTHORITY  

AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
448 E. 1st Street, Room 190 

Salida, Colorado 81201 
Tuesday, February 5, 2019 - 6:00 p.m. 

MINUTES 

1. Call to Order  
a. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Mayor Wood 
b. Roll Call – Present: Mayor Wood; Cheryl Brown-Kovacic; Justin Critelli; 

Harald Kasper; Dan Shore; Jane Templeton.  Absent: Michael Bowers. 
 

2. Consent Agenda –  
a. Approval of Agenda 
b. Approval of Meeting Minutes - January 22, 2019 
c. Proposed Stipulation with Mount Massive Lakes and Homestake Trout Club 

– Case No. 18CW3008 
d. Articipate Special Events Permit 
e. Lunar New Year: Asia Fest Special Events Permit 
f. Elks Lodge #808 Special Events Permit 

 
Critelli made a motion to combine and approve the items on the Consent Agenda.  
Seconded by Kasper.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
3. Liquor Licensing Authority 

a. Public Hearing for Vitamin Cottage Natural Foods Market dba Natural 
Grocers Fermented Malt Beverage (City) Liquor License Application (Mayor 
Wood/Sonia Walter) 

 
Mayor Wood opened the public hearing.  Christopher Carr (counsel); Eric Wilson 
(local manager); Max Scott (Oedipus, Inc representative) spoke in favor of 
approving the liquor license.  Mayor Wood closed the public hearing. Shore made 
a motion to approve the liquor license for Natural Grocers.  Seconded by 
Templeton.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
4. Audit Committee  

a. Review of 2017 Audit  
b. Approval of 2018 Audit Engagement Letter 

 



2 
 

February 5, 2019 Minutes 
 

Brown-Kovacic made a motion to accept the 2017 audit.  Seconded by Critelli. With 
all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
Shore made a motion to approve the Audit Engagement Letter.  Seconded by 
Critelli.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
5. Citizen Comment – 3-minute time limit 

 
- Anne Graf, Megan Kahn, Megan Lombardo, Andrea Schulz-Ward, Leah Underwood, 

Aaron Mendelkorn, Marcie Post and Hannah Guilford spoke in opposition to the City 
Administrator.   

- Sheree Beddingfield spoke of civility. 
 

6. Unfinished Business / Action Items 
a. Ordinance 2019-01 Amending SMC Section 8-1-30 (5), Second Reading and 

Public Hearing (Russ Johnson) 
 

Mayor Wood opened the public hearing. No one spoke.  Mayor Wood closed the 
public hearing. Shore made a motion to approve Ordinance 2019-01.  Seconded by 
Critelli.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
7. New Business / Action Items 

a. Appointment of City Treasurer (City Council) 
 

Shore made a motion to appoint Alisa Pappenfort as City Treasurer.  Seconded 
by Kasper.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
b. Ordinance 2019-02 First Reading and a Public Hearing Regarding the 

Annexation of 7.5 Acres at 786 Scott Street (Glen Van Nimwegen) 
 

Mayor Wood opened the public hearing. Joe DeLuca spoke on the matter. 
Mayor Wood closed the public hearing. Critelli made a motion to approve 
Ordinance 2019-02 on First Reading. Seconded by Templeton.  Second 
Reading on February 19, 2019. With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
c. Ordinance 2019-03 First Reading and Setting a Public Hearing for the Zoning 

of 7.5 Acres Located at 786 Scott Street to R-3, High Density Residential 
District (Glen Van Nimwegen) 

 
Critelli made a motion to approve Ordinance 2019-03 on First Reading. 
Seconded by Kasper.  Second Reading and Public Hearing on February 19, 
2019.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
d. Ordinance 2019-04 First Reading and Setting a Public Hearing Regarding the 

Rezoning of 19.1 Acres Located at 6507 CR 102 from RMU, Residential Mixed 
Use to R-4, Manufactured Housing Residential (Glen Van Nimwegen) 

 
 



3 

February 5, 2019 Minutes 

Critelli made a motion to approve Ordinance 2019-04.  Seconded by Templeton. 
Second Reading and Public Hearing on February 19, 2019.  Critelli, Shore, Kasper 
and Templeton voted in favor; Brown-Kovacic voted against.  With a 
majority, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

e. Resolution 2019-04 Appointing Member(s) to the Planning Commission (Glen
Van Nimwegen)

Shore made a motion to appoint Giff Kriebel (term expiring January 1, 2023) and 
Douglas Mendelson (term expiring June 3, 2022) as regular members to the 
Planning Commission.  Seconded by Brown-Kovacic.  With all in favor, THE 
MOTION CARRIED. 

f. Resolution 2019-05 Appointing Member(s) to the Historic Preservation
Commission (Glen Van Nimwegen)

Brown-Kovacic made a motion to appoint Karen Lintott (term expiring January 1, 
2022) as an alternate to the Historic Preservation Committee.  Seconded by Shore.  
With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

g. Resolution 2019-06 Approving a Revocable License to Encroach Agreement
with Cooper Inc. for 242 F Street (Glen Van Nimwegen)

Brown-Kovacic made a motion to approve Resolution 2019-06.  Seconded by 
Critelli.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

h. Resolution 2019-07 Establishing a Retail Marijuana License Transfer Fee
(Sonia Walter)

Critelli made a motion to approve Resolution 2019-07. Seconded by Shore.  With all 
in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 

i. Resolution 2019-08 Approving an Intergovernmental Memorandum of
Understanding – Chaffee County Housing Office Cost Sharing Agreement
(Drew Nelson)

Kasper made a motion to approve Resolution 2019-08.  Seconded by Templeton, 
(with the mention made to correct language in regards to Parties).  With all in favor, 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 

8. Councilmembers’ and Mayor’s Reports
Mike Bowers, Dan Shore, Jane Templeton, Justin Critelli, Cheryl Brown-
Kovacic, Harald Kasper, Mayor P.T. Wood.  

- Shore spoke of a working group of business owners in regards to Future 50.
- Templeton congratulated Michael Varnum as being selected man of the year. She also

attended the Intergovernmental Meeting and of a presentation by Becky Gray; and of
having a representative of recycling at a work session in the near future.



4 
 

February 5, 2019 Minutes 
 

- Critelli thanked David Lady for getting the airport runways cleared of snow.  He 
attended the Intergovernmental Meeting and the Chaffee Health Coalition’s meeting 
and spoke of better availability for emergency mental health aid. 

- Brown-Kovacic also congratulated Michael Varnum, and of the visits to CMC 
campuses. 

- Mayor Wood also spoke of the tour of CMC campuses and asked for Council for their 
list of achievements for the year. 

- City Administrator mentioned the possibility of a Ready Grant for an economic 
analysis for soaking pools.  Also, that CAST has a meeting on March 7, 2019 and 
invited Councilmembers to attend. 

 
 

9. Adjourn – Meeting adjourned at 8:06PM. 
 
 
 
 

 
[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk    Mayor P.T. Wood 



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

Consent Agenda

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Public Works 

PRESENTED BY: 

David Lady 

ITEM:  
Consent Agenda: 

Council Action Award 2019 Concrete Maintenance Project, Project No 2019-006 

BACKGROUND: 
The City of Salida right-of-ways have concrete infrastructure consisting of curb and gutter, ADA 
ramps/crosswalk, cross pans, and sidewalks.  Public Works staff have surveyed defective sections 
of concrete and repairs have been prioritized in the highest pedestrian utilized corridors such as 
downtown streets and near school routes (see attached exhibit).  Based on the field survey, 
approximately 5-8 years of repairs remain at the current spending rate. 

The project was advertised and bids were received on February 12, 2019 by only one bidder as 
follows:  

Cedar Ridge Landscape, Inc. $170,039.50 
Cedar Ridge Landscape, Inc. was the contractor that was awarded the 2018 Concrete Project last 
summer and performed the work satisfactory.  Many compliments were given to the quality and 
performance by Salida residents.  Cedar Ridge Landscape, Inc. had great communication 
throughout the duration of the project. 

FISCAL NOTE: 
The 2019 budget for Concrete Maintenance is $250,000 (31-30-6009-3) which includes sidewalk, 
ADA, cross-walk, and curb and gutter repairs.  Work will be managed in-house which is a cost 
savings of approximately 4% of the total project cost for this type of work.  Awarded work being 
proposed is under budget for 2019. 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT $     170,039.50 
CONTINGENCY (3%) $       17,000.00 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT  $     In-House 
QA MATERIALS TESTING (2%) $      3,400.00 
TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET $     190,439.50 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is recommending award of the construction contract for the 2019 Concrete Maintenance Work 
Project and authorizing the City Administrator to enter into a Construction Agreement between the 
City and Cedar Ridge Landscape, Inc. in the amount of $170,039.50 with a total project budget 
of $190,439.50. 



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

Consent Agenda 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Public Works 

PRESENTED BY: 

David Lady 

 SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

A Council person should make a motion to “combine and approve the items on the consent 
agenda.” 

Followed by a second and then a voice vote. 



ST
H

F   
     

ST

G     
   S

T

E   
     

ST

H     
   S

T

D     
   S

T

I    
    S

T

C

J   
     

ST

PONCHA   BLVD

7TH      ST

CRESTONE AV

8TH      ST

13TH     ST

HO
LM

AN
   A

V

9TH      ST

12TH     ST

SACKETT  AV

3RD      ST

14TH     ST

11TH     ST

2ND      ST
ILLINOIS AV

15TH     ST

HU
NT

    
 ST

6TH      ST

PA
LM

ER
   S

T

4TH      ST

JONES    AV

BL
AK

E  
  S

T

10TH     ST

TE
LL

ER
   S

T

DODGE    ST

K   
     

ST

16TH     ST

NICHOLLS AV

L    
    S

T

OURAY    AV

CA
LD

WE
LL

 AV

M      
  ST

OLD STAGE RD

WA
LN

UT
   S

T

PARK     AV

PIT
KIN

   S
T

CR140    RD

NE
W 

    
 ST

VIN
E 

    
ST

ST
AT

E  
  S

T

CHILCOTT ST

WOOD     AV

SHAVANO  AV

SC
OT

T  
  S

T

GRAND

N      
  ST

ST1

C     
   S

T

ELM      DR

TWO RIVERS RD

TRAILSIDECI

C ST

ME
SA

    
 LN

GRANT    ST

ME
SA

    
 C

I

REX      CI

CR
ES

TO
NE

 M
ES

A D
R

B   
     

ST

Ct
y. 

Rd
. 1

09

MESA     CT

O      
  ST

MAPLE    DR

STARBUCK CI
5TH      ST

SILVERSPRDR

ME
SA

 V
IEW

 LN

CO
TT

ON
WO

OD
 C

IR

PARK     P
L

Dezi Drive

ANGELVIEWCI

PONCHA   BD

MI
LF

OR
D 

ST

STH

5TH      ST

VIN
E 

    
ST

SC
OT

T  
  S

T

L   
     

ST

J    
    S

T

2ND      ST

GR
AN

T  
  S

T

K      
  ST

I    
    S

T

C     
   S

T

WA
LN

UT
   S

T

PARK     AV

I     
   S

T

3RD      ST

C     
   S

T

Date: 2/13/2019´ 0 1,400 2,800700
Feet

Proposed Concrete Work 2019

2015-2016 Sidewalk Work
2017 Sidewalk Work
2018 Sidewalk Work
Proposed 2019 Sidewalk Work
All Sidewalks
Local Roads



A
H

GB

CD

EF

ILKJ

29
87
84

63
56

62

73

3
7

70

99

10
8

20

36

46

58

82 53

61

81

33

72

45

52

88

28

1

78

38

23

35

44

42

74

26

21

11

93

97

51

98

47

83

17

F   
     

ST

E   
     

ST

G     
   S

T
H     

   S
T

D     
   S

T

7TH      ST

J   
     

ST

8TH      ST
I    

    S
T

PONCHA   BLVD

9TH      ST

STH

6TH      ST

3RD      ST

4TH      ST

10TH     ST

HO
LM

AN
   A

V

11TH     ST

2ND      ST

C     
   S

T

12TH     ST

13TH     ST

K     
   S

T

BL
AK

E  
  S

T

TE
LL

ER
   S

T

PA
LM

ER
   S

T

L   
     

ST

14TH     ST

PARK     AV

15TH     ST

DODGE    ST

CHILCOTT ST

MAXWELL  ST

ME
SA

    
 C

I

CHIPETA  TR

OURAY    AV

B     
   S

T

CR140    RD

5TH      ST

ADAMS    ST

TRAILSIDECI

EATON    ST

GRANT    ST

ANGELVIEWCI

16TH     ST

DAVIDSON WY

MESA     DR

14TH     ST

I    
    S

T

C     
   S

T

5TH      ST

Date: 1/23/2019´ 0 400 800200
Feet

Proposed Concrete Work 2019

ADA Corners
Alley Crossing
Sidewalks
Local Roads





 REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 

2019: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

3.a.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Sonia Walter 

BY:
ITEM:  

Consideration to approve Snow Angel Bar and Grill’s Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License Transfer 

Application. 

BACKGROUND: 

A Colorado Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License application for Cugi LLC dba Snow Angel Bar and 

Grill was filed with the Deputy City Clerk on January 14, 2019.  The Notice of Public Hearing was 

published on January 18, 2019 and the premises posted on February 8, 2019.   

Proper fees have been remitted to the City. The property is in compliance with all fire, safety and zoning 

ordinances and is in compliance with the 500 foot distance prohibition in regards to public or parochial 

schools. 

Individual history records have been submitted by the owners and have been received from the Colorado 

Bureau of Investigation.  Due to this being a transfer of license, the applicant is in the process of having 

the wholesale liquor vendors who supplied the prior licensee complete DR Form 8004 (Wholesaler 

Affidavit of Compliance). This is to prove that there are no outstanding debts from the prior licensee. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Staff recommends approving the applicant’s Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License Transfer Application. 





















   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting Date: February 19, 
2019:   
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

3.b. 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Sonia Walter 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:    

Consideration to approve Little Cambodia’s Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License Application. 

BACKGROUND: 

A Colorado Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License application for Little Cambodia LLC dba Little 

Cambodia was filed with the Deputy City Clerk on January 14, 2019.  The Notice of Public Hearing was 

published on January 18, 2019 and the premises posted on February 8, 2019.   

 

Proper fees have been remitted to the City. The property is in compliance with all fire, safety and zoning 

ordinances and is in compliance with the 500 foot distance prohibition in regards to public or parochial 

schools. 

 

Individual history records have been submitted by the owners and have been received from the Colorado 

Bureau of Investigation. 

  

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
Staff recommends approving the applicant’s Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License Application. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 























































  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
 Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.a

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Glen Van Nimwegen 

ITEM:  
Resolution No. 2019-09 – Approving an Annexation Agreement for the Treat-Mesch Annexation. 
BACKGROUND: 
The applicant made an application to annex the 7.5 acre site located at 786 Scott Street.  The 
request was heard by the Planning Commission on January 28, 2019 and the Commission 
recommends the site be annexed.  Council held the public hearing on the annexation on February 
5, 2019. 
Property Owner and Applicant:  Robert Treat as represented by Joe Deluca of Crabtree Group, 
Inc. 



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
 Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.a.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Glen Van Nimwegen 

Proposed Annexation Agreement: 
Staff believes we have an agreement on the following stipulations on the annexation.  Under each 
originally proposed condition is a description of the proposed changes and why; and reference to 
the paragraph in the agreement where it is addressed: 
1. Residential development of the site shall meet the inclusionary housing requirements of Article

XIII of Chapter 16 of the Salida Municipal Code.
Staff Modification:  Staff added to the agreement that affordable housing units within the
development will be allowed a 60% reduction in the water and sewer system development fees.

Agreement References:  5.5 and 5.6.2

2. Provision of open space or in-lieu open space fees (currently $3,000 per unit) in an amount then
in effect at the time of issuance of a building permit; or dedication of open space that the Planning
Commission  finds to be an Extraordinary Contribution per Section 16-6-120 (8).
Agreement Reference:  5.4.3

3. The following will be considered by the Planning Commission as an extraordinary contribution
to trail and waterway access and therefore meeting the open space requirements as described
by Section 16-6-120 (8) (v) subject to final review at the time of development or subdivision
review:
a. Provision of a 20 foot wide public pedestrian trail easement along the northeast side of the

river for the construction of a trail by the City of Salida at a future date; and
b. Provision of a 13 15 foot wide public pedestrian easement from the Illinois Avenue right-of-

way to the Arkansas River and construction of public access and fishing platform.
Planning Commission recommends the easement dedications be an extraordinary contribution.  
Staff concurs. 

Agreement Reference:  5.4.2 

4. Provision of school impact fees in an amount then in effect (currently $354 per unit) at the time
of issuance of a building permit.
Agreement Reference:  5.7.3

5. The portion of the site lying east of the centerline of the Arkansas River shall have R-3 zoning
with the restriction listed below.  This restriction shall be listed as a note on the plat:
a. Residential density may not be transferred to the parcel west of the river centerline.
Agreement Reference:  5.4.4



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
 Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.a.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Glen Van Nimwegen 

6. Development of the site shall include street improvements to Scott Street to include the
property’s frontage extending south to Old Stage Road (CR 105) to include:
a. Curb, gutter Ribbon curb on both sides of the paved lanes and sidewalk on the east side;
b. 34 24 feet of asphalt paving per Public Works standards; and
c. Street trees to be planted in the parkway for the frontage area only.
Staff Modification:  Staff met with the applicant after the February 5 Council meeting.  After 
considering the true purpose of Scott Street, and the drainage impacts caused by a vertical curb, 
staff is recommending to reduce the width of paving and the substitution of a ribbon curbs in 
Scott Street. 

Agreement Reference:  5.8.3 

7. As an alternative to the developer constructing the improvement outlined in #6 above, the
developer shall agree to
a. Provide a road impact fee of $______ per residential unit at the time of issuing a building

permit; or
b. Construct in its entirety a public street from the proposed subdivision to Old Stage Road (CR

105) to align with Treat Lane; and
c. Provide a fee-in-lieu in an amount equal to two lanes of paving from the north edge of the

project on Scott Street to Old Stage Road (CR 105) and the full half-street improvement (curb,
gutter and sidewalk) for the project’s Scott Street frontage.

Planning Commission recommendation:  Staff agrees with the Commission on deleting a. 
However the applicant should still be responsible for improving the frontage of the parcel on 
Scott Street as described in #6.  The agreement reflects this change. 

Agreement Reference:  5.8.3  

8. The internal public street may be allowed to include only 50 feet of right-of-way from Scott Street
until the east end of the tract identified as “Ehmke Annexation” and thereafter must be 60 feet of
right-of-way.  Improvements within the 50 segment to include curb, gutter, paving and sidewalk
on the north one-half and paving on the south half.  The remainder of public streets within the
project shall be constructed per Public Works standards.
Agreement Reference:  5.8.1

9. An eight inch (8”) waterline shall be extended from the existing line in Old Stage Road (CR 105)
to the north end of Scott Street to connect to an existing waterline.  Developer would be eligible
for cost recovery of the water line for the segment from project connection north to connection
on north end of Scott Street.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
 Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.a.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Glen Van Nimwegen 

Staff Modification:  In working through this requirement with the applicant, there are a number of 
ways to provide redundant access to water sources.  Therefore we are recommending this 
requirement become more general. 

Agreement Reference:  5.8.4 

10. Development of the site shall include a public trail-storm sewer and drainage easement from the
end of the Illinois Avenue right-of-way to the Arkansas River.
Agreement Reference:  5.42

11. The future development shall include a public street and utilities stubbed to the south property
line in the approximate alignment with Treat Lane in the Two Rivers subdivision for future
extension.
Agreement Reference:  5.8.1

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
A council person should make the motion to “approve Resolution 2019-09 approving the agreement 
for the Treat-Mesch Annexation.”  

Attachments: 
Resolution 2019-09 
Treat-Mesch Annexation Agreement 
Conceptual Subdivision 
Trails Map



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 09  

(Series of 2019) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 
APPROVING AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH ROBERT D. TREAT FOR THE 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY INTO THE CITY. 

WHEREAS, Robert D. Treat is the “Owner” of certain real property located  at 786 Scott 
Street  in unincorporated Chaffee County, Colorado (the “Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Property is eligible for annexation under C.R.S. § 31-12-104, and the 
Owner desires to annex the Property into the City of Salida (the “City”); and   

WHEREAS, the Owner desires that the City provide municipal services at the Property on 
the same terms and conditions as those services are provided throughout the rest of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Owner desire to enter into an Annexation Agreement, 
attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-101 et 
seq. to set forth the terms and conditions of the Property’s annexation into the City. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SALIDA, COLORADO THAT:  

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The City incorporates the foregoing recitals as findings
and determinations by the City Council. 

2. Enactment.  The City Council finds it is in the best interests of the City, approves
the attached Annexation Agreement, and authorizes the Mayor to sign it.  

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of February, 2019. 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

P.T. Wood, Mayor 
[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 



1 00148850-7   

TREAT-MESCH ANNEXATION 
AGREEMENT 

 
THIS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 

_____ day of ________________, 2019, by and between the CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 
a Colorado statutory city (“City”), and Robert D. Treat (“Annexor”), each a “Party” and together 
the “Parties.” 
 

Section 1 - Recitals 
 
1.1 The Annexor is the fee title owner of 100% of certain lands known as the “Treat-Mesch 

Annexation” and more particularly described on attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated 
herein by this reference (the “Property”). 
 

1.2 The Property is contiguous to the current municipal boundaries of the City and contains 
approximately 7.5 acres, more or less, in unincorporated Chaffee County, Colorado. 

 
1.3 The Annexor desires to have the Property annexed to the City, and the City desires to annex 

the Property on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
1.4 Under Colorado law, the City may not annex the Property without the consent of the 

Annexor. 
 
1.5 On November 30, 2018, the Annexor filed with the City Clerk a petition for annexation of 

the Property (“Annexation Petition”). 
 
1.6 The City has determined that the Annexation Petition complies with the Colorado 

Municipal Annexation Act of 1965, as amended, Colorado Revised Statutes sections 31-12-
101 through -123 (the “Annexation Act”), and Article IX of the City’s Land Use and 
Development Code. 

 
1.7 The City has accepted the Annexation Petition, has given all notices and conducted all 

hearings required by the Annexation Act, has determined that the Property is eligible for 
annexation to the City, and has made all necessary findings in support of the annexation of 
the Property. 

 
1.8 On January 28, 2019, the Salida Planning Commission held a public hearing and reviewed 

the annexation map and all required supportive information and has submitted a written 
recommendation to the City Council to approve the proposed annexation. 

 
1.9 On February 19, 2019 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2019-02 annexing the 

Property to the City; and Ordinance No. 2019-03, zoning the Property as High Density 
Residential (R-3).   

 
1.10 The City and the Annexor desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their agreements 

concerning the terms and conditions of the annexation of the Property to the City and the 
zoning and development of the Property. 



2 00148850-7   

 
1.11 The City and the Annexor acknowledge that the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth 

are reasonable; within the authority of each to perform; necessary to protect, promote, and 
enhance the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents and property owners of the 
City; and mutually advantageous. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the City and the Annexor agree as follows: 

 
Section 2 – Definitions 

 
 As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings: 
 
2.1 “Agreement” means this Annexation Agreement.  The Recitals in Section 1 above are fully 

incorporated into this Agreement and made a part hereof by this reference. 
 

2.2 “Annexation Act” means sections 31-12-101 through -123, Colorado Revised Statutes. 
 
2.3 “Annexation Petition” means the Petition for Annexation of the Property filed of record 

with the City Clerk on November 30, 2018. 
 
2.4 “Annexor” means Robert D. Treat, and his successor(s), assigns and agent(s). 
 
2.5  “City” means the City of Salida, a Colorado statutory City. 
 
2.6 “City Code” means the City of Salida Municipal Code (SMC). 
 
2.7 “City Council” means the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado. 
 
2.8 “Effective Date” means the date on which City Council adopted a resolution approving the 

execution of this Agreement.  On the Effective Date, this Agreement will become binding 
upon and enforceable by the City and the Annexor. 

 
2.9 “Final Annexation Approval” means that all of the following have occurred: 
 

2.9.1 City Council has adopted a resolution approving the execution of this agreement; 
 

2.9.2 The effective date of Ordinance No. 2019-02, annexing the Property to the City, has 
occurred; and 

 
2.9.3 The effective date of Ordinance No. 2019-03, zoning the Property as High Density 

Residential (R-3) has occurred. 
 
2.10 “Property” means the land that is described as the Treat-Mesch Annexation in the 

Annexation Petition and that is legally described in attached Exhibit A. 



3 00148850-7   

 
2.11 “Reimbursable Costs and Fees” means all fees and costs incurred by the City in connection 

with the City’s processing and review of the proposed annexation, including without 
limitation processing and review of the Annexation Petition, zoning applications, and 
development proposals; and the City’s drafting, review, and execution of this Agreement. 

 
Section 3 – Purpose of Agreement and Binding Effect 

 
3.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a contractual relationship between the City 

and the Annexor with respect to the annexation of the Property, and to establish the terms 
and conditions upon which the Property will be annexed, zoned, and developed.  The terms, 
conditions, and obligations described herein, including without limitation restrictions upon 
the zoning and development of the Property, are contractual obligations of the Parties, and 
the Parties waive any objection to the enforcement of the terms of this Agreement as 
contractual obligations.  

 
3.2 This Agreement benefits and is binding upon the City, the Annexor, and the Annexor’s 

successor(s).  Unless otherwise specified herein, the Annexor’s obligations under this 
Agreement constitute a covenant running with the Property.  As described in Section 9.13 
below, the Annexor shall record this Agreement with the Clerk and Recorder of Chaffee 
County, Colorado.  

 
Section 4 – Annexation of Property 

 
4.1 The Annexor agrees to the Annexation of the Property, and the City agrees that it will 

annex the Property, only in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

Section 5 – Terms and Conditions for Annexation of Property 
 
5.1 All terms and conditions imposed by this Agreement are in addition to and not in place of 

any and all requirements of the City Code, the Annexation Act, and all other applicable 
laws and regulations. 

 
5.2 Annexation of the Property to the City will not be effective until both of the following 

conditions have been met: 
 

5.2.1 The Annexor and the City have mutually executed and delivered this Agreement; 
and 

 
5.2.2 Final Annexation Approval has occurred. 
 

5.3 Zoning of Property.   
 

5.3.1 On January 28, 2019, the Salida Planning Commission recommended zoning the 
Property as High Density Residential (R-3).   

 



4 00148850-7   

5.3.2 At its February 19, 2019 meeting, the City Council approved zoning the Property as 
High Density Residential (R-3).   

 
5.3.3 Nothing in this Agreement limits, restricts, or abrogates in any way, and this 

Agreement is not to be construed to limit, restrict, or abrogate in any way, the power 
or authority of the City to rezone the Property or any portion thereof at any time 
after annexation, either on the City’s own motion or in response to a zoning petition. 
 

5.4 Subdivision of Property. 
 

5.4.1 The Annexor’s intent is to develop the property into twenty (20) lots that may be 
subsequently subdivided into additional lots and be developed in accordance with 
the R-3 zoning standards.  Changes to the number of lots may be proposed through 
the major subdivision process to be approved by the City Council. 
 

5.4.2 The subdivision may include a fifteen foot (15’) wide public trail and storm sewer 
and drainage easement from the Illinois Avenue right-of-way to the Arkansas River 
and 20 foot (20’) wide public trail easement along the northeast side of the Arkansas 
River.  If the public trail easements are provided, the plat shall include a note that 
states these dedications shall be considered an extraordinary contribution to trail and 
waterway access and therefore the open space requirements of Section 16-6-120 (8) 
of the SMC have been met. 

 
5.4.3 If the public trail easements described above in paragraph 5.4.2 are not provided, the 

subdivision shall include a note that a cash in-lieu fee for Parks, Trails and Open 
Space totaling $3,000 per unit is required at the time of issuance of a building 
permit for each lot within the subdivision; or the open space requirements are 
otherwise met per Section 16-6-120 (8) of the SMC. 

 
5.4.4 The subdivision plat shall contain a note that the residential density of that portion 

of the Property lying northeast of the centerline of the Arkansas River may not be 
transferred to the portion of the Property lying southwest of the centerline of the 
Arkansas River.  

 
5.4.5 Annexor shall enter into a subdivision improvement agreement that includes 

guarantees for the construction of the public street improvements described in 
paragraphs 5.8.2 and 5.8.3;  and the extension of public water and sewer mains 
described in paragraphs 5.8.2, 5.8.4 and 5.9; and guarantees the construction of 
which per paragraph 5.10, prior to recordation of the subdivision. 

 
 



5 00148850-7   

5.5 Inclusionary Housing.  The Annexor volunteers and agrees to provide for affordable 
housing as required by Article XIII. Inclusionary Housing of Chapter 16 of the SMC. 
  

5.6 Utilities and Municipal Services. The City shall provide the Property the usual and 
customary municipal services provided by the City within its municipal limits generally, in 
accordance with the City Code and City policies. Limitations upon the availability of City 
utility service may exist from time to time. The Property is and will remain subject to all 
policies, ordinances, rules, regulations, platting restrictions, and permitting procedures 
currently in effect or enacted in the future to allocate or regulate the use of the City’s utility 
resources generally throughout the City. 
 
5.6.1 Water and Wastewater Service. The City shall provide water and wastewater 

treatment services to the Property upon the same basis as such services are provided 
to other properties within the City, subject to the rules and regulations given in 
Section 13 of the City Code, as it exists now and as it may be amended.  Water and 
wastewater treatment service are available on a “first come, first served” basis, and 
the availability of such services is determined at the time application therefore is 
made. The City’s obligation to provide water and wastewater treatment service to 
the Property is contingent upon the City’s certification that all water and wastewater 
facilities and all water- and wastewater-related improvements on the Property 
conform to approved plans and specifications and all applicable City standards for 
those facilities and improvements.   Connection to the City’s treated water and 
wastewater treatment facilities will be at the then-prevailing fees and rates for such 
connection and service, except as provided below. 

 
5.6.2 Water and Wastewater System Development Fees for Affordable Housing.  If the 

Annexor provides affordable housing units within the subdivision as provided in 
paragraph 5.5, the water and sewer system development fees shall be 60% of the 
fees in effect at the time of issuance of a building permit for the affordable unit, 
unless the City has adopted a citywide utility system development fee structure that 
includes cost reductions for affordable housing.  
 

5.6.3 Fire Protection Services. The City shall provide fire protection services to the 
Property upon the same basis as such services are provided to other properties 
within the City. 

 
5.6.4 Police Services. The City shall provide police services to the Property upon the 

same basis as such services are provided to other property within the City. 
 

5.6.5 Electric, Natural Gas, Telephone, Cable TV, and Other Utility Services. The City 
does not provide electric, natural gas, telephone, or cable TV facilities or services. 
Such services are available within the City from private entities. The extension of 
such services to the Property is not the obligation or responsibility of the City. 

 



6 00148850-7   

5.6.6 Streets and Roads. Within its municipal boundaries, the City shall maintain any duly 
dedicated and accepted public streets and roads that serve the Property, both on- and 
off-site, upon the same basis as such services are provided to other properties within 
the City. 

 
5.7 Fees.  The Annexor shall pay to the City the fees described below at the time set forth 

below: 
 

5.7.1 Annexor’s Reimbursement of Processing Fees.  The Annexor shall reimburse the 
City for all fees and actual costs incurred by the City in connection with the City’s 
processing and review of the proposed annexation, including without limitation 
processing and review of the Annexation Petition, zoning applications, and 
development proposals, and the City’s drafting, review, and execution of this 
Agreement (“Reimbursable Costs and Fees”).  The Reimbursable Costs and Fees 
include but are not limited to the City’s costs incurred for engineering, surveying, 
and legal services, including the services of outside City consultants and/or counsel; 
recording fees; printing and publication costs; and any and all other reasonable costs 
incurred by the City.  Interest will be imposed at rate of 1.5% per month on all 
balances not paid to the City within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the 
City’s invoicing of the Annexor for the Reimbursable Costs and Fees, with that 
effective date determined in accordance with Section 9.8 below.  In addition to any 
and all remedies available to the City and in the event the City is forced to pursue 
collection of any amounts due and unpaid under this provision or under this 
Agreement, the City shall be entitled to collect attorney’s fees and costs incurred in 
said collection efforts in addition to the amount due and unpaid. 
 

5.7.2 Payment of Currently Existing Fees as a Condition of Annexation.  The Annexor 
shall pay to the City any fees required to be paid under this Agreement or the 
currently existing City Code, regardless of whether the relevant provisions of the 
City Code are later amended, repealed, or declared to be invalid. Payment of such 
fees pursuant to this Agreement is agreed to by and between the Parties as a 
condition of the annexation, and as a pre-condition to any development review.  The 
Annexor further agrees not to contest any ordinance imposing such fees as they 
pertain to the Property.  

 
5.7.3 Fair Contributions for Public School Sites.  Per Section 16-6-140 (c) (1) Annexor 

agrees to a payment in lieu of public school site dedication or conveyance in the 
amount of $354 per residential dwelling unit at the time of issuance of a building 
permit. 

 
5.8 Dedications, Easements and Road Improvements.  At no cost to the City, the Annexor shall 

dedicate or convey to the City all rights-of-way, easements, and public land reasonably 
required by the City, as set forth below.  The City may require dedication of rights-of-way, 
easements, or public land at any time construction thereof or thereon is deemed necessary in 
the public interest, even if the Property is not being platted or developed at the time the City 
deems dedication of the rights-of-way, easements, or public land necessary. 
 



7 00148850-7   

5.8.1 The Annexor shall dedicate 60 foot (60’) wide public right-of-ways within the 
subdivision with a segment stubbed to the south property line in alignment with 
Treat Lane.  The segment of right-of-way within the subdivision from Scott Street 
adjacent to the “Ehmke Annexation” may be 50 foot (50’) wide. 

 
5.8.2 The Annexor shall be responsible for the construction of road improvements within 

the above described right-of-ways to include paving, curb, gutter and sidewalk. 
Improvements within the 50 foot wide segment shall include paving, curb, gutter 
and sidewalk on the north side and paving and curb on the south half.  

 
5.8.3 Development of the project shall include improvements to Scott Street from the 

north edge of the Property to County Road 105 (Old Stage Road) to include 24 feet 
(24’) of paving; ribbon curb on both sides of the paving; and sidewalk on the east 
side; and street trees within the Property frontage.  As an alternative to the above 
improvement requirements for Scott Street, the Annexor may construct in its 
entirety a public street from the proposed subdivision to County Road 105 (Old 
Stage Road) to align with Treat Lane, including sewer and water mains; and provide 
a fee in-lieu of the Scott Street improvements, described above, for the Property’s 
frontage only. 

 
5.8.4 Annexor shall loop the waterline for the subdivision to two point of connection to 

city water mains. 
 

5.8.5 The Annexor shall dedicate public utility easements for all City water and sewer 
mains constructed and installed on the Property. 

 
5.9 Water and Sewer Mains.  The Annexor shall extend sewer and water mains within the 

Property as approved by the public works staff.   
 
5.10 Subdivision Agreement and Performance Guarantee.  Annexor shall enter into a subdivision 

agreement that includes in part that in meeting its obligations with respect to public 
improvements under this Section 5 and under the City Code, the Annexor shall deliver to 
the City a reasonable performance guarantee in the form of cash, a letter of credit, a cash 
bond, a performance bond, or another security instrument acceptable to and approved in 
writing by the City Attorney. 

 
5.11 Drainage.  Prior to any future development of the Property, the Annexor shall obtain the 

City’s approval of a master drainage plan that complies with all applicable laws, 
regulations, and ordinances.  The Annexor’s activities, operations, and development on the 
Property must comply with the master drainage plan and with all applicable laws, 
ordinances, and regulations pertaining to drainage. 

 
Section 6 – Zoning 

 
6.1 The Annexor requests and consents to High Density Residential District (R-3).  Upon Final 

Annexation Approval, the Property will be subject to and must adhere to all applicable 
zoning regulations of the City, as those regulations may be amended.  The Annexor shall 



8 00148850-7   

cease and desist from any non-conforming uses on the Property within one (1) year from the 
date of Final Annexation Approval. In that one (1) year period, there must be no expansion 
of any non-conforming use. 

 
Section 7 – Breach by Annexor and City’s Remedies 

 
7.1 In the event of a breach of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by the 

Annexor, the City may take any action necessary or appropriate to enforce its rights, 
including without limitation any or all of the following: 

 
7.1.1 The refusal to issue any building permit or Certificate of Occupancy to the Annexor; 

provided, however, that this remedy will be unavailable to the City until after the 
affidavit described in Section 7.1.2 below has been recorded; and provided further 
that this remedy will not be available against a bona fide third party. 
 

7.1.2 The recording with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder of a first affidavit 
approved in writing by the City Attorney and signed by the City Administrator or 
the City Administrator’s designee, declaring that the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement have been breached by the Annexor. At the next regularly scheduled City 
Council meeting following recording of such first affidavit, the City Council shall 
either approve the filing of said first affidavit or direct the City Administrator to file 
a second affidavit declaring that the default has been cured and nullifying the first 
affidavit. Upon the recording of a first affidavit, no parcels or portions thereof on the 
Property may be sold until the default has been cured.  An affidavit signed by the City 
Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee and approved by the City 
Council declaring that the default has been cured will remove this restriction and be 
sufficient evidence when recorded that the default has been cured. 

 
7.1.3 A demand that any performance guarantee given for completion of any public 

improvement be paid or honored. 
 

7.1.4 The refusal to allow further development review for the Property. 
 

7.1.5 Any other remedy available in equity or at law. 
 
7.2 Unless immediate action is necessary to protect the health, safety, or welfare of the City’s 

residents, the City shall give the Annexor ten (10) days’ written notice of the City’s intent 
to take any action under this Section 7, during which 10-day period the Annexor may cure 
the breach described in said notice and prevent further remedial action by the City. In the 
event the breach is not cured within the 10-day period, the City will consider whether the 
Annexor has undertaken reasonable steps to timely complete the cure if additional time is 
required.  
 

7.3 The District Court of the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado, will have exclusive 
jurisdiction to resolve any dispute over this Agreement. 

 
7.4 Any waiver by the City of one or more terms of this Agreement will not constitute, and is 



9 00148850-7   

not to be construed as constituting, a waiver of other terms.  A waiver of any provision of 
this Agreement in any one instance will constitute, and is not to be construed as 
constituting, a waiver of such provision in other instances. 

 
Section 8 – Indemnification and Release 

 
8.1 Release of Liability.  The Annexor acknowledges that the City cannot be legally bound by 

the representations of any of its officers or agents or their designees except in accordance 
with the City Code, City ordinances, and the laws of the State of Colorado.  The Annexor 
further acknowledges that it acts at its own risk with respect to relying or acting upon any 
representation or undertaking by the City or its officers or agents or their designees, which 
representation or undertaking subsequently is held unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction.  
Accordingly, the Annexor expressly waives and releases any current or future claims 
related to or arising from any such representation or undertaking by the City or its officers 
or agents or their designees. 

 
8.2 Indemnification. 

 
8.2.1 The Annexor shall release the City, and the City's officers, agents, employees, and 

their designees, from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 
including but not limited to attorneys' fees and costs, arising from or in connection 
with the following:  (a) the City’s approval of the proposed annexation, (b) the 
City’s approval of the proposed zoning, (c) any approval given during development 
review of the Property; (d) except to the extent of any actual negligence on the part 
of the City, and the City's officers, agents, employees, and their designees, any road 
or sidewalk enlargement, extension, realignment, improvement, or maintenance, or 
approval thereof; or (e) any other item contained in this Agreement. 
 

8.2.2 Nothing in this Agreement obligates or compels the City to proceed with any action 
or referendum position, other than as the City Council, in its sole discretion, directs. 

 
Section 9 – General Provisions 

 
9.1 Waiver of Defects. In executing this Agreement, the Annexor waives all objections it may 

have to any defects in the form or execution of this Agreement concerning the power of the 
City to impose conditions on the Annexor as set forth herein.  The Annexor further waives 
all objections it may have to the procedure, substance, and form of the ordinances or 
resolutions adopting this Agreement. 

 
9.2 Final Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and controls all prior written and oral 

agreements and representations of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and 
is the total integrated agreement between the Parties. 

 
9.3 Modifications.  This Agreement may be modified only by a subsequent written agreement 

executed by both Parties.  



10 00148850-7   

9.4 Voluntary Agreement. The Annexor agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions of 
this Annexation Agreement on a voluntary and contractual basis, as a condition of 
annexation of the Property to the City. 

  
9.5 Election. The Annexor represents and submits that to the extent an election would be 

required by the Annexation Act to approve the annexation or impose terms and conditions 
upon the Property to be annexed, the Annexor owns one hundred percent (100%) of the 
Property to be annexed, and would vote to approve the annexation and all terms and 
conditions as set forth herein. Thus, any election necessarily would result in a majority of the 
electors' approval to the annexation and the terms and conditions. 
 

9.6 Annexor’s Representations. All representations of the Annexor, either oral or as set forth in 
the Annexation Petition and zoning application, and all documents previously or 
subsequently submitted with reference thereto, are to be considered incorporated into this 
Annexation Agreement as if set forth in full herein.  

 
9.7 Survival. The City’s and the Annexor’s representations, covenants, warranties, and 

obligations set forth herein, except as they may be fully performed before or on the 
Effective Date, will survive the Effective Date and are enforceable at law or in equity. 

 
9.8 Notice. All notices required under this Agreement must be in writing and must be hand- 

delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to 
the addresses of the Parties as set forth below. All notices so given will be considered 
effective immediately upon hand-delivery, and seventy-two (72) hours after deposit in the 
United States Mail with the proper address as set forth below. Either Party by notice so 
given may change the address to which future notices are to be sent. 

 
 

Notice to the City: City of Salida 
 Attn:  City Administrator and City Attorney 

448 East First Street 
Salida, CO 81201 

 
Notice to the Annexor:            Robert D. Treat 
                                                12500 County Road 258a 
                                                Salida, CO 81201  
 



11 00148850-7   

9.9 Terms and Conditions as Consideration for Annexation.  The Annexor acknowledges that 
the City’s decision to annex the Property is at the City’s sole discretion.  In consideration 
for the City’s agreement to annex, the Annexor agrees to be bound by all of the terms and 
conditions of such annexation contained herein, and further acknowledges that such terms and 
conditions are requisite to the City’s decision to annex the Property. The Annexor further 
agrees and acknowledges that its decision to proceed with annexation is a voluntary act of 
the Annexor, and that the Annexor has the sole and absolute discretion to withdraw its 
petition for annexation in lieu of such voluntary act. 
 

9.10 Applicable Laws, Ordinances, and Regulations.  The Annexor understands and agrees that 
the Property, upon annexation, and all subsequent development of the Property, will be 
subject to and bound by the applicable provisions of laws, ordinances, resolutions, 
regulations, and policies of the City or the State as they exist at the time of annexation and 
as they may from time to time be amended or adopted.  Nothing in this Agreement 
constitutes or is to be construed as constituting a repeal of existing ordinances or 
regulations, or as a waiver or abnegation of the City’s legislative, governmental, or police 
powers to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the City and its inhabitants. 

 
9.11 Termination.  In the event that the annexation of the Property is for any reason not 

completed, this Agreement will terminate and become null and void and of no force and 
effect.  In such an event, the Annexor shall pay all Reimbursable Costs and Expenses 
incurred by the City to the time of termination.  Otherwise, unless and until the Property is 
disconnected from the City in accordance with Colorado law, including without limitation 
sections 31-12-601 through -605, the term of this Agreement is perpetual. 

 
9.12 Severability.  The terms of this Agreement are severable.  If a court of competent 

jurisdiction finds any provision hereof to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining terms 
and conditions of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.  

 
9.13 Recording.  The Annexor shall record this Agreement with the Clerk and Recorder of 

Chaffee County, Colorado. 
 
9.14 No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, confers or is 

intended to confer any rights or remedies whatsoever upon any person or entity other than 
the City, the Annexor, and the Annexor’s successor(s). 

 
WHEREFORE, the parties hereto have executed duplicate originals of this Agreement on 

the day and year first written above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 00148850-7   

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
 

By   Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
  
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 
 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ) 

 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this  day of  2019 by 

  , as Mayor, and  by  , as Clerk, on 
behalf of the City of Salida, Colorado. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
My Commission expires:  . 

 
  

Notary Public 
 
 

By     
 Robert D. Treat           

 
 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ) 

 
Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this  day of  2019 by 

   as  of  . 
 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
My Commission expires:  . 

 
  

Notary Public 



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes approximate Railroad

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. Easement Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text
D A V I S   -   D A G U E   -   D I X O N    A N N E X A T I O N S

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):S89%%d25'50"E  623.73   DEED:EAST %%p677

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M) S89%%d12'36"E 202.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00%%d30'11"E 163

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T     1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T     2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T     3

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%d25'50"E   643.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW Cor. S1/2 NE1/4 SW1/4 based

AutoCAD SHX Text
on Plat of Peel's Subdvision

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%d24'06"E 302.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):N0%%d52'00"E  61.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):N89%%d18'00"W  262.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%d25'50"E %%p425.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence Posts Only

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP w/

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Drop

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" VERT. CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4.0' SQUARE LID)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:WEST %%p227

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):0%%d30'11"E  138.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 167

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):S89%%d24'06"E  452.0   DEED:EAST 452

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):S00%%d31'36"W  150.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 150

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):S89%%d31'00"E  154.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:EAST 154

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M)N0%%d29'00"E  13.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M) S77%%d30'W  284.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 54

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):N75%%d00'00"W  273.35   DEED:N75%%dW  277

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY:S77%%d30'W  725.59-TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
P E E L ' S      S U B D I V I S I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E H M K E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A N N E X A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0%%d51'05"E  329.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%d16'15"E  262.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0%%d52'00"E  268.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD STAGE ROAD - CCR NO. 105

AutoCAD SHX Text
S C O T T                S T R E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A R K A N S A S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R I V E R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approximated Centerline of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Origianl Denver & Rio Grande

AutoCAD SHX Text
Western Railroad R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(See Note 4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P 7 . 5        A C R E S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y      O F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S A L I D A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L I N E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O R P O R A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S  1 / 2   N E  1 / 4   S W  1 / 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(See Note 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:S77%%d30'W  806.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%p222.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M)S89%%d26'12"E 149.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Big Springs Well"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 163

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   8

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   9

AutoCAD SHX Text
I L L I N O I S    A V E

AutoCAD SHX Text
13' TRAIL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST 60-34

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST 60-34

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CL OF RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH WATER MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' TRAIL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREAT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY ACCESS GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST 60-34

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' NON-EXCLUSIVE UTILITY EASEMENT (TO EXISTING WELL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
22' INTERIM UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\18031 ARKANASAS LIVING NEIGHBORHOOD\ANALYSIS AND DESIGN\SOURCE DRAWINGS\18031 PRELIM PLAT.DWG 12/17/2018 3:03:56 PM 12/17/2018 3:03:56 PM12/17/2018 3:03:56 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSISTED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 2 5   D   S T R E E T S A L I D A ,   C O    8 1 2 0 1 P H :   7 1 9 - 5 3 9 - 1 6 7 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9 1 8   C U Y A M A   R O A D O J A I  ,   C A   9 3 0 2 3 P H :   7 1 9 - 2 2 1 - 1 7 9 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARKANSAS RIVER LIVING, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
770 CRESCENT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKEWOOD, CO 80214

AutoCAD SHX Text
PH: 303-623-8600

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16  DC TSC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
HENDERSON LAND SURVEYING CO., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
203 G STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALIDA, COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job Number:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fld. book:

AutoCAD SHX Text
18031

AutoCAD SHX Text
S309, Pgs. 8-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC. 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-18-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALIDA, CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY  OF  SALIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARKANSAS RIVER LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR A TRACT IN THE S 1/2 NE 1/4 SW 1/4 OF SECTION 4, T49N, R9E, NMPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTIONS ARE BASED ON THE BEARING N00°07'24'WBETWEEN RECOVERED SURVEY MONUMENTS AT THE SW AND NW CORNERS OF PROPERTY, AS SHOWN AND DESCRIBED ON THIS PLAT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
J-O5-081

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE: ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  YOU MUST COMMENCE YOU MUST COMMENCE  MUST COMMENCE MUST COMMENCE  COMMENCE COMMENCE ANY LEGAL ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  LEGAL ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY LEGAL ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  IN THIS SURVEY IN THIS SURVEY  THIS SURVEY THIS SURVEY  SURVEY SURVEY WITHIN THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  SUCH DEFECT. SUCH DEFECT.  DEFECT. DEFECT. IN NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  ANY DEFECT IN THIS ANY DEFECT IN THIS  DEFECT IN THIS DEFECT IN THIS  IN THIS IN THIS  THIS THIS SURVEY BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  YEARS FROM THE DATE YEARS FROM THE DATE  FROM THE DATE FROM THE DATE  THE DATE THE DATE  DATE DATE OF THE SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT CONTAINED HEREON.





  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
 Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.b.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Glen Van Nimwegen 

ITEM:  
Ordinance No. 2019-02; Second Reading of Ordinance on Proposed Treat-Mesch Annexation. 
BACKGROUND: 
The applicant made an application to annex the 7.5 acre site located at 786 Scott Street.  
The request was heard by the Planning Commission on January 28, 2019 and the 
Commission recommends the site be annexed.  The Council held a public hearing on February 5, 
2019. 
Property Owners and Applicants:  Robert Treat as represented by Joe Deluca of Crabtree Group, 
Inc. 



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
 Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.b.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Glen Van Nimwegen 

Proposed Annexation: 
An application for annexation is a multi-step process.  The application has been accepted by 
the City Council and a public hearing was held on February 5, 2019.  City Council approved 
Resolution 2018-56 on December 18, 2018 declaring the annexation request to be in 
substantial compliance with state statutes.  The following findings of facts are required for 
annexation: 

1. The proposed annexation has greater than 1/6th contiguity with the municipal boundary of the
City of Salida.

2. The annexation property is under single ownership and the owners are a party to the annexation.
3. The annexation property is currently zoned RES, Residential and REC, Recreational in Chaffee

County.
4. The annexation property is within the Municipal Services Area of the City of Salida as defined in

the Comprehensive Plan and intergovernmental agreement with Chaffee County and therefore
can be served by City sewer and water utilities.

5. The property is adjacent to a burgeoning part of the city and therefore may be efficiently served
by City fire and police departments.

6. The property is a natural extension of the City’s municipal boundary and meets the legal
requirements for annexation.

7. The property to be annexed includes a portion of Scott Street right-of-way, thereby ensuring the
roadway that serves city residents is completely within the city’s jurisdiction.

8. The annexation of the property is consistent with the vision and goals set forth in the
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. Specifically, it is a strategic goal of the Plan to provide for new
neighborhoods and opportunities for a variety of housing types and densities. In addition, the
proposal will provide for a logical extension of the City boundary to support the demand for
residentially zoned land, which will provide both housing and job opportunities.

RESPONSE FROM REFERRAL DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES:  

• Salida Fire Department:  Doug Bess, Fire Chief, responded “Fire Department does not have any
concerns at this time.”

• Salida Police Department: Chief Russ Johnson responded “Looks good to me.”
• Chaffee County Development Services Department:  Jon Roorda, Planning Manager stated

“Chaffee County supports this annexation request.”
• Salida Public Works Department:  Public Works Director David Lady has requested

improvements be made to Scott Street; and considerations be made when the site is developed
regarding street and utility connections.  These recommendations will be incorporated into an
annexation agreement described below.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
 Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.b.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Glen Van Nimwegen 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the annexation.  

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 28, 2019 to take public testimony and 
make a recommendation to the City Council on the proposed annexation.  The Commission voted 
6-1 to recommend that Council approve the annexation.

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
A council person should make the motion to “approve Ordinance 2019-02 on first reading and set 
the second reading for February 19, 2019.”  

Attachments: 
Ordinance No. 2019-02 
Application 



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
ORDINANCE NO. 02  

SERIES OF 2019 
  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO ANNEXING TO THE CITY 
OF SALIDA A CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND IN UNINCORPORATED CHAFFEE 
COUNTY KNOWN AS THE TREAT-MESCH ANNEXATION. 
 

WHEREAS, on November 30, 2019, Robert D. Treat (the “Owners”), filed a General 
Development Application (the “Petition”) to commence proceedings to annex to the City of Salida 
(the “City”) a certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 7.5 acres located at 786 Scott 
Street, Salida, in the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado, and being more particularly described 
on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-108, the City Council by Resolution No. 56, Series 
of 2018 specified that the City Council would hold a hearing on the proposed annexation at its 
regular meeting on February 5, 2019, commencing at the hour of 6 p.m. in the City Council 
Chambers, 448 East First Street, Salida, Colorado; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. §31-12-108 to -110, the City Council on February 5, 2019 
held a duly-noticed public hearing to consider the proposed annexation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was published on December 21, 2018, December 28, 
2018, January 4, 2019 and January 11, 2019 in The Mountain Mail newspaper; and  
 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §31-12-105(1)(e) provides that prior to the completion of any 
annexation within a three-mile area, the municipality shall have in place a plan for that area, which 
generally describes the proposed location, character, and extent of streets, subways, bridges, 
waterways, waterfronts, parkways, playgrounds, squares, parks, aviation fields, other public ways, 
grounds, open spaces, public utilities and terminals for water, light, sanitation, transportation and 
power to be provided by the municipality and the proposed land uses for the area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City hereby sets forth its Findings of Fact, Determinations, and 
Conclusions with regard to annexation to the City of the Treat-Mesch Annexation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City currently has in place a Comprehensive Plan and other long-range 
planning documents which constitute the City's annexation plan. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SALIDA, COLORADO, THAT: 
 

1. The City incorporates the foregoing recitals as findings and determinations by the 
City Council. 

 



2. The annexation to the City of the Treat-Mesch Annexation described on Exhibit A
is hereby approved with the following conditions of approval, and such real property is hereby 
annexed to and made a part of the City of Salida. 

3. Within ten (10) days after final publication of this Ordinance, the City Clerk of the
City of Salida, Colorado, on behalf of the City shall: 

A. File one (1) copy of the Annexation Plat and the original of this Annexation
Ordinance in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Salida, Colorado;

B. File for recording three (3) certified copies of this Annexation Ordinance and
three (3) copies of the Annexation Plat, containing a legal description of the
annexation parcel, with the County Clerk and Recorder of Chaffee County,
Colorado, with directions to the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder to file one
certified copy of this Annexation Ordinance and one copy of the Annexation
Map with the Division of Local Government of the Department of Local Affairs
of the State of Colorado and one certified copy of this Annexation Ordinance
and one copy of the Annexation Map with the Colorado Department of
Revenue; and

C. File one certified copy of this Annexation Ordinance and one copy of the
Annexation Map in the office of the County Assessor of Chaffee County,
Colorado.

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING AT A PUBLIC HEARING, on February 5, 2019, 
ADOPTED and ORDERED PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City of Salida by the City Council on the 5th day of February, 2019 and set for second reading 
on the 19th day of February, 2019. 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 
PUBLISHED IN FULL, by the City Council on the 19th day of February, 2019. 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

P.T. Wood, Mayor 



 [SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the 8th day of 
February, 2019, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the 22nd day of February, 2019. 

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



 

719.539.1675 325 D Street, P.O. Box 924, Salida, CO 81201 
719.221.1799  crabtreegroupinc.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

  

TREAT ANNEXATION REPORT 
CITY OF SALIDA, COUNTY OF CHAFFEE, COLORADO 

JOE DELUCA & PAUL CRABTREE 
Crabtree Group Inc. 
Salida, Colorado 
Project No. #18031 

OCTOBER 4, 2018 

z:
\0

0
0

9
9

-c
ra

b
tr

ee
 c

o
m

m
o

n
\f

o
rm

s\
w

o
rd

 t
em

p
la

te
s\

re
p

o
rt

 t
e

m
p

la
te

.d
o

cx
 



 

i 

Contents 

1 Annexation Location ................................................................................................................... 1 

2 COMPLIANCE TO ANNEXATION STANDARDS ............................................................................. 2 

3 REVIEW STANDARDS .................................................................................................................. 3 

4 Agreements ................................................................................................................................ 3 

5 Public Facilities and Services ...................................................................................................... 3 

6 PROVIDE FOR ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY ................................................................ 4 

7 CONCEPTUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN ........................................................................................... 5 

 

 



 

Page 1 of ? 
 

1 ANNEXATION LOCATION 

The subject property is currently addressed as 786 Scott Street, Salida, CO 81201.  The property is 
separated by the Arkansas River and therefore is considered two separate parcels.  The parcel on the west 
side of the river is 5.29 acres fronting Scott Street with a parcel number of 380704300026.  The parcel on 
the east side of the river is 1.82 acres and is encumbered with a railroad right of way through the property.  
The parcel number for this parcel is 380704300165.  The parcels are shown on the Assessor Map in Figure 
1.  

  

Figure 1 – Assessor’s Map of Parcels 

  



 

Page 2 of ? 
 

2 COMPLIANCE TO ANNEXATION STANDARDS 

• It is desirable and necessary to annex the subject property on the west side of the river as 
the property is bounded on two sides by City boundaries and the general area is bounded 
on three sides by City boundaries.  It is a natural progression of annexation to fill in this gap 
in the City boundary with annexation and development under the City Land Use Code. 

• It is also desirable to annex the subject property on the east side of the river as the City has 
interest in developing a connecting road and trail from the F. Street Bridge to County Road 
105.  The petitioner has no current plans for development of this parcel, but understands 
the value of annexing this parcel into the City to provide road and trail connectivity potential.  

• The petitioners are 100% owners of the parcels.  A single owner owns both parcels. 
• There is greater than the required 1/6th continuity of the aggregate external boundaries of 

the City limits. 
• It is in the interest of the community for the annexation area to be urbanized in the near 

future due to its location. 
• There has been no previous petition or election for annexation to the City for these parcels 

in the last 12 months. 

  



 

Page 3 of ? 
 

3 REVIEW STANDARDS 

Consideration of Costs and Benefits 

• By planning principles, this area is infill as the general area is surrounded on three sides by 
municipal boundaries with services.  With the growth the City is experiencing, this area offers 
lower costs to maintain and replace infrastructure than annexations which are only contiguous 
on one boundary and are true extensions of new infrastructure. 

• This area is within the pedestrian and bike shed for services in the two rivers commercial and 
highway 50 commercial.  It is also within the pedestrian and bike shed for job locations. 

• The project will dedicate a trail easement on the east side of the river that will provide a critical 
segment in the much-desired connection between the F. Street bridge and CR 105. 

4 AGREEMENTS 

The project agrees to provide a trail easement on the east side of the river for the consideration of no 
fee in lieu of for open space. 

5 PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

Water: is available on Old Stage Road (CR 105) and will be extended north on Scott street during 
development. 

Sewer: is available on Scott Street 

Natural Gas: is available in the area 

Electric: the property is currently served by electric and electric service is available in the area and will 
be undergrounded. 

Phone/Cable/Internet: All are available in the area. 

Street: Streets will be built to City of Salida standards and will be dedicated as Public Right of Ways. 

  



 

Page 4 of ? 
 

6 PROVIDE FOR ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY 

The logical direction for growth is to the south east of the City with the Annexation of the Vandaveer 
Ranch and Two Rivers Annexation.  This property is an infill area between the historically developed area 
of the City and the newly annexed growth.  The area surrounding the subject property is primarily zoned 
for high density development, primarily R4 to the south and north of the subject property, C1 to the west 
and Planned Development across Old Stage Road to the south.  The subject property is well suited for higher 
density small lot single and duplex stick-built homes. 

 

 

  

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

R4 

R4 

PD 

C1 



 

Page 5 of ? 
 

7 REQUESTED ZONING 

The applicant is requesting R-3 High Density Residential District zoning. 

High-Density Residential (R-3). The purpose of the High-Density Residential (R-3) zone district is to provide for 
relatively high-density duplex and multi-family residential areas, including primarily triplex, townhouse and 
apartment uses. Complementary land uses may also include such supporting land uses as parks, schools, churches, 
home occupations or day care, amongst other uses. 

The surrounding area is primarily zoned for R-4, C-1 and P.D. all of which support higher density zoning.  Higher 
density zoning is more efficient and cost effective for City Services.  Higher density zoning is also a greener more 
environmentally friendly mode of development compared to lower densities. 

8 CONCEPTUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

The conceptual development plan for the subject property is single family and duplex townhomes that 
meet the development standards for the R3 zone.  Access to the property will be to Scott Street which has 
connectivity to Illinois Street and Old Stage Road.  The development plan intends to increase public access 
to the river with a trail easement on the east side of the river.  The plan utilizes the river corridor to provide 
river front lots while protecting the river corridor with setbacks appropriate for the flood plain, topography 
and river frontage. 

 

9 IMPLEMENT THE COMPREHESIVE PLAN 

Policy CC-III.1 – The Arkansas River should be maintained as a focal point of the community to be enjoyed 
from both the shore and in the current. 

Action CC-III.1.a – Seek ways to improve or provide additional public access to the Arkansas River. 

The development plan and proposed annexation agreement provides an easement on the east side 
of the river for public access to the Arkansas River. 

Policy LU&G-I. 2 – Infill and redevelopment should be encouraged and will advance the objectives of this 
plan. 

Action LU&G-I.2.a - Encourage projects to use maximum density allowances to make the best use of 
the available infrastructure 

 
The proposed annexation due to its location is infill when observing the municipal boundaries 

and zoning map.  The proposed zoning of R3 is consistent with the area’s density and massing. 
 
Action LU&G-I.2.c –Focus new development in the Salida area within the Municipal Services Area to 

ensure adequate provision of services and limit sprawl development around the city. 
 



 

Page 6 of ? 
 

The proposed annexation and development are within the municipal service area and the 
location limit sprawl as it is in an infill location. 

 



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.c

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

ITEM:  
Ordinance 2019-03 – Public Hearing and Second Reading on an Ordinance to Zone 7.5 Acres 
Located at 786 Scott Street to R-3, High Density Residential District. 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed rezoning is paired with the previous items regarding the annexation agreement 
(Resolution 2019-09); and annexation of the site (Ordinance 2019-02).  City Council approved the 
zoning ordinance on first reading on February 5, 2019. 

Applicants:  Robert D. Treat as represented by Joe Deluca of Crabtree Group, Inc. 

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The site to the west is zoned C-1, Commercial District and 
is being used as a mobile home park; South is zoned R-4 and includes residential uses and a 
former mobile home park.  The property to the north remains in Chaffee County with the zoning of 

Treat-Mesch Annexation and Zoning 



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.c.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

RES, Residential Zone District.  The land east of the parcel is also in Chaffee County and is zoned 
REC, Recreational. 

ZONING: 
The applicant is requesting R-3 zoning as it is consistent with the zoning in the neighborhood and 
meets their preliminary plans for a residential neighborhood with various housing types and 
densities.   

Though the applicants did show a proposed subdivision of approximately 10 duplex and 10 single-
family lots at the conceptual meeting on December 3, 2018, the allowed density could be as many 
as 96 units on the west 5.3 acres.  However, the limited street frontage and floodplain will limit 
development of the site.  Regardless, the R-3 district is consistent with the city zoning on the east 
and south. 

The review standards for a rezoning include: 

1. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan includes the goals that
new projects should complement the neighborhood’s mass and scale and be focused within
the Municipal Services Area.  The proposal supports these goals.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.c.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

2. Consistency with the Purpose of the Zone District:  The purpose of the R-3 district is to provide
“…relatively high density duplex and multi-family residential areas, including primarily triplex,
townhouse and apartment uses.”

3. Compatibility with Surrounding Zone District and Uses:  The R-4 district is the dominant zoning
classification on the north side of Old Stage Road.  Transitioning to R-3 on the subject parcel is
compatible between the R-4 and C-1 zoning that exists in the neighborhood.

4. Changed Conditions or Errors:  The proposed zoning is occurring because of the requirement
to rezone property annexed to the City in accordance with Section 16-4-50 of the Land Use
and Development Code.

RESPONSE FROM REFERRAL DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES:  
• Salida Fire Department:  Doug Bess, Fire Chief, responded “Fire Department does not have

any concerns at this time.”
• Salida Police Department: Chief Russ Johnson responded “Looks good to me.”
• Chaffee County Development Services Department:  Jon Roorda, Planning Manager stated

“Chaffee County supports this annexation request.”     
• Salida Public Works Department:  Public Works Director David Lady has requested

improvements be made to Scott Street; and considerations be made when the site is
developed regarding street and utility connections.  These recommendations will be
incorporated into an annexation agreement described in the annexation memo regarding
Ordinance 2019-02.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the City Council approve the proposed zoning. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

On January 28, 2019 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and recommended the City 
Council approve the proposed zoning by a vote of 7-0. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

A Council person should make a motion “to approve Ordinance 2019-03 on second reading.” 

Attachments 
Ordinance 2019-03 
Conceptual Subdivision 



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
ORDINANCE NO. 03 

SERIES OF 2019 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, ZONING CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE TREAT-MESCH ANNEXATION AS HIGH DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL (R-3) ZONE DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, November 30, 2018, Robert D. Treat (“Petitioners”), filed a General 
Development Application to commence proceedings to annex to the City of Salida (the “City”) a 
certain unincorporated tract of land comprised of 7.5 acres located at 786 Scott Street, Salida, 
County of Chaffee, State of Colorado (the “Property”), and being more particularly described on 
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 02, Series of 2019 the City of Salida annexed the Treat-
Mesch Annexation to the City; and 

WHEREAS, Petitioner has filed an application to zone the Property within the High 
Density Residential  District (R-3), and on January 28, 2019 the City of Salida Planning 
Commission considered the zoning application for the Property and recommended that the City 
Council zone it as High Density Residential District  (R-3); and 

WHEREAS, as required by the Salida Municipal Code, the public hearing on the zoning 
application for the Treat-Mesch Annexation was held on February 19, 2019 at a regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Salida City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SALIDA, COLORADO, THAT: 

1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.

2. The Property described on Exhibit A is hereby zoned High Density Residential (R-
3). 

3. Promptly following adoption of this Ordinance, the City Administrator shall cause
the terms of this Ordinance to be incorporated into the Official Zoning Map of the City pursuant 
to Section 16-4-210 of the Salida Municipal Code.  The signed original copy of the Zoning Map 
shall be filed with the City Clerk.  The Clerk shall also record a certified copy of this Ordinance 
with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder.  The City staff is further directed to comply with all 
provisions of the Salida Land Use Regulations, SMC §16-1-10, et seq., to implement the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 



INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on February 5, 2019, ADOPTED and ORDERED 
PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City 
Council on the ____ day of __________, 2019 and set for second reading and public hearing on 
the 19th day of February, 2019. 
 
 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 
PUBLISHED IN FULL, by the City Council on the 19th day of February, 2019. 
 

 
CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 
 

  
P.T. Wood, Mayor 

 [SEAL] 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

  
City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 
 

 
PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ____ day of 

__________, 2019, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the ____day of __________, 
2019. 

 
 

  
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 

  

 



PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Denotes approximate Railroad

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. Easement Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text
D A V I S   -   D A G U E   -   D I X O N    A N N E X A T I O N S

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):S89%%d25'50"E  623.73   DEED:EAST %%p677

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M) S89%%d12'36"E 202.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00%%d30'11"E 163

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T     1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T     2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T     3

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%d25'50"E   643.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW Cor. S1/2 NE1/4 SW1/4 based

AutoCAD SHX Text
on Plat of Peel's Subdvision

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%d24'06"E 302.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):N0%%d52'00"E  61.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):N89%%d18'00"W  262.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%d25'50"E %%p425.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence Posts Only

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP w/

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Drop

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE-T-TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" VERT. CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAMPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4.0' SQUARE LID)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:WEST %%p227

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):0%%d30'11"E  138.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 167

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):S89%%d24'06"E  452.0   DEED:EAST 452

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):S00%%d31'36"W  150.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 150

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):S89%%d31'00"E  154.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:EAST 154

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M)N0%%d29'00"E  13.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M) S77%%d30'W  284.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 54

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M):N75%%d00'00"W  273.35   DEED:N75%%dW  277

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY:S77%%d30'W  725.59-TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
P E E L ' S      S U B D I V I S I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E H M K E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A N N E X A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0%%d51'05"E  329.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89%%d16'15"E  262.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0%%d52'00"E  268.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD STAGE ROAD - CCR NO. 105

AutoCAD SHX Text
S C O T T                S T R E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A R K A N S A S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R I V E R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approximated Centerline of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Origianl Denver & Rio Grande

AutoCAD SHX Text
Western Railroad R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(See Note 4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%P 7 . 5        A C R E S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y      O F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S A L I D A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L I N E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C O R P O R A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S  1 / 2   N E  1 / 4   S W  1 / 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(See Note 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:S77%%d30'W  806.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%p222.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M)S89%%d26'12"E 149.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Big Springs Well"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED:NORTH 163

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   8

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T   9

AutoCAD SHX Text
I L L I N O I S    A V E

AutoCAD SHX Text
13' TRAIL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST 60-34

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST 60-34

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CL OF RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH WATER MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' TRAIL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREAT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERGENCY ACCESS GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST 60-34

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' NON-EXCLUSIVE UTILITY EASEMENT (TO EXISTING WELL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
22' INTERIM UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\18031 ARKANASAS LIVING NEIGHBORHOOD\ANALYSIS AND DESIGN\SOURCE DRAWINGS\18031 PRELIM PLAT.DWG 12/17/2018 3:03:56 PM 12/17/2018 3:03:56 PM12/17/2018 3:03:56 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSISTED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 2 5   D   S T R E E T S A L I D A ,   C O    8 1 2 0 1 P H :   7 1 9 - 5 3 9 - 1 6 7 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9 1 8   C U Y A M A   R O A D O J A I  ,   C A   9 3 0 2 3 P H :   7 1 9 - 2 2 1 - 1 7 9 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARKANSAS RIVER LIVING, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
770 CRESCENT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKEWOOD, CO 80214

AutoCAD SHX Text
PH: 303-623-8600

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16  DC TSC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
HENDERSON LAND SURVEYING CO., INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
203 G STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALIDA, COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job Number:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fld. book:

AutoCAD SHX Text
18031

AutoCAD SHX Text
S309, Pgs. 8-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC. 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-18-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALIDA, CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY  OF  SALIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARKANSAS RIVER LIVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR A TRACT IN THE S 1/2 NE 1/4 SW 1/4 OF SECTION 4, T49N, R9E, NMPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTIONS ARE BASED ON THE BEARING N00°07'24'WBETWEEN RECOVERED SURVEY MONUMENTS AT THE SW AND NW CORNERS OF PROPERTY, AS SHOWN AND DESCRIBED ON THIS PLAT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
J-O5-081

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE: ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE  YOU MUST COMMENCE YOU MUST COMMENCE  MUST COMMENCE MUST COMMENCE  COMMENCE COMMENCE ANY LEGAL ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  LEGAL ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY LEGAL ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  IN THIS SURVEY IN THIS SURVEY  THIS SURVEY THIS SURVEY  SURVEY SURVEY WITHIN THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. YOU FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. FIRST DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT. DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  SUCH DEFECT. SUCH DEFECT.  DEFECT. DEFECT. IN NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS  ANY DEFECT IN THIS ANY DEFECT IN THIS  DEFECT IN THIS DEFECT IN THIS  IN THIS IN THIS  THIS THIS SURVEY BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE  YEARS FROM THE DATE YEARS FROM THE DATE  FROM THE DATE FROM THE DATE  THE DATE THE DATE  DATE DATE OF THE SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT CONTAINED HEREON.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.d.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

ITEM:  
Ordinance 2019-04 – Public Hearing and Second Reading for the Zoning of 19.1 Acres Located at 
6507 CR 102 from Residential Mixed-Use (RMU) to Manufactured Housing Residential District (R-
4). 
BACKGROUND: 
The request is to rezone the 19.1 acre parcel located at 6507 C.R. 102 from Residential Mixed 
Use (RMU) to Manufactured Housing Residential (R-4). 

Applicants:  Sprout Tiny Homes, Inc as represented by Joe Deluca of Crabtree Group. 

UPDATE: 

At the first reading of the proposed ordinance on February 5, 2019, the Council requested 
additional information on the typical rates for RV rental spaces, and what the terms of an 
affordable RV space for workers would include.  At this time the property is currently controlled by 
the Sprout Tiny Home Annexation Agreement.  Therefore the subsequent development of the site 
as an RV Park, or other allowed R-4 use, would require amending this agreement.  The County 
Housing Director is scheduled to meet with the applicants prior to the hearing.  



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.d.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

DISCUSSION: 

1. The properties surrounding this parcel include the City of Salida Wastewater Treatment Plant
which is located within the Industrial (I) zone district.  The remaining parcels surrounding this
lot are within Chaffee County’s Industrial zone district.

2. This parcel was annexed into the City in April 2016 and at that time the applicant requested the
(RMU) zoning and were planning on applying for a Planned Development Overlay.  City
Council approved the proposed River View at Cleora Planned Development on November 16,
2016 but the Planned Development was never recorded.

3. The applicant is requesting the (R-4) zone district and has a buyer for the parcel contingent on
approval.  The applicant intends on submitting a development application for Limited Impact
Review approval for a Recreational Vehicle Park if the rezoning is approved.  Recreational
Vehicle Parks require limited impact review approval in the (R-4) zone district and the
Commercial (C-1) zone district.

4. The applicants’ representative, Joe Deluca, contacted Chaffee County Director of Housing
Becky Gray and she thought it was reasonable to set the rents based on the average
difference between market housing and the Area Median Income housing data for our area.

5. The applicant has proposed amendments to the Anglers Ridge Annexation agreement to
reflect the recreational vehicle park proposal.  The following amendment will address the
affordable housing requirement.

• The Owner volunteers and agrees that twelve and one-half percent (12.5%), rounded to the
nearest whole number, of the RV Rental spaces shall be restricted and rented to qualifying
individuals with full time jobs in Chaffee County based upon the most recently published
Colorado Housing and Finance Authority Income Tables for Colorado Counties. Maximum
rents for the rent-restricted spaces or units shall be determined by a formula mutually
determined by the Chaffee County Housing Office and the City of Salida. The Owner shall
provide an annual report to the City Council showing compliance with these requirements.
Should no applicant qualify for the rent-restricted space and/or units, the units may be
rented for six months and then be returned to the rent-restricted pool of twelve and one-half
percent (12.5%).

• The trail and infrastructure requirements shall remain.

6. The owner of the Park will be required to pay occupational lodging taxes for the recreational
vehicles that are rented for less than thirty (30) days.

• The amended annexation agreement addresses short-term rentals: The Owner agrees
to pay occupancy tax and sales tax as required by the latest adopted City Codes for
short term rentals and comply with any and all adopted regulations.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.d.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

Review Standards For Map Amendments 16-4-210(c): 
1. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed amendment shall be consistent with the

Comprehensive Plan.

• The purpose of the Land Use Plan within the Comprehensive Plan is to specify locations in
and around Salida where various land uses and intensities of use will be encouraged. This
parcel is not shown on the Comprehensive Plan Land Use map.  The proposal supports
these goals.

2. Consistency with Purpose of Zone District. The proposed amendment shall be consistent with
the purpose of the zone district to which the property is to be designated.

• The applicant is requesting a zone district designation of the subject property of
Manufactured Housing Residential (R-4).  The purpose of the Manufactured Housing
Residential (R-4) zone district is to provide for relatively high density manufactured housing,
mobile home residences and mobile home parks.

• The applicant’s proposed use of the property for a recreational vehicle park is consistent
with the R-4 zone district.

3. Compatibility with Surrounding Zone Districts and Uses. The development permitted by the
proposed amendment shall be compatible with surrounding zone districts, land uses and
neighborhood character.

• Although the (R-4) zoning may not be compatible with the surrounding (I) zoned properties
there is a recreational vehicle park east of this parcel.  The proposed use as a recreational
vehicle park should be compatible with the surrounding uses.

• The applicant originally requested the (RMU) zone with the annexation of the parcel
because they knew that they would be applying for a Planned Development Overlay.  Their
plans at the time were to build 200 tiny rental manufactured homes, a community center
building, a community garden, a restaurant, an area for storage units, and about 4.57 acres
of private open space and a public trail along the river.  The Planned Development was not
recorded or acted upon.

4. Changed Conditions or Errors.  The applicant shall demonstrate that conditions affecting the
subject parcel or the surrounding neighborhood have changed, or that due to incorrect
assumptions or conclusions about the property, one (1) or more errors in the boundaries
shown on the Official Zoning Map have occurred.

• This application for rezoning is a result of the applicant’s desire to be able to apply for a
recreational vehicle park which is only allowed with limited impact review approval in the (R-
4) and (C-1) zone districts.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.d.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

REVIEW AGENCY COMMENTS: 
• Finance Department:  No concerns at this time.
• Fire Department:  Chief Doug Bess – Fire Department has no concerns at this time.  Fire

protection shall be addressed down the road.
• Police Department:  Chief Russ Johnson - I have reviewed the plans that have been submitted

and have no concerns at this time.
• CDOT, Jo Heinlein:  A permit was issued for this use on November 2, 2017. No new access

construction or reconstruction was required. Chaffee County is the Permittee, and Joe DeLuca
for Sprout Tiny Homes is the Applicant.

However, the permit is marked in our database as "Expired" since no Notice to Proceed was
ever requested. This can be cured by either the Permittee or the Applicant submitting a request
for Notice to Proceed to this office.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Council approve the proposed re-zoning, subject to approval of a 
development agreement that addresses affordability for workforce in Chaffee County, trail 
extensions and infrastructure.   

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
In the review of the application, the Planning Commission focused on the long term use of the 
property within the context of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and current zoning for the property, 
as well as the surrounding area.  

On January 28, 2019 the Planning Commission held a public hearing and recommended the City 
Council approve the proposed zoning as recommended by staff by a vote of 7-0. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
A Council person should make a motion “to approve Ordinance 2019-04 on second reading.” 

Attachments 
Ordinance 2019-04 
Application Narrative 
Conceptual RV Park 
Email from Joe Deluca describing affordability 
Sprout Tiny Homes Annexation Agreement 



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
ORDINANCE NO. 04 

SERIES OF 2019 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, REZONING CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE SPROUT PROPERTY FROM RESIDENTIAL 
MIXED USE (RMU) TO MANUFACTURED HOUSING RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-4) 

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2018, Sprout Tiny Homes, Inc. (“Petitioners”), filed a 
General Development Application to commence proceedings to rezone 19.1 acres located at 6507 
CR 102, Salida, County of Chaffee, State of Colorado (the “Property”), and being more 
particularly described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Property was annexed with other land as part of the Angler’s Ridge 
Annexation which was approved by the City Council by Ordinance 2016-06 on February 2, 2016; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Property was zoned to Residential Mixed Use (RMU) by Ordinance 
2016-09 on February 2, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, an Annexation Agreement regarding development of the Property was 
approved by the City Council by Resolution No. 2016-14 on February 2, 2016 and recorded at 
Reception No. 426346, Chaffee County Recorder’s Office, Chaffee County; and 

WHEREAS, a Planned Development Overlay was placed on the Property by the City 
Council by Ordinance 2016-23, approved November 15, 2016, to create the River View at Cleora 
Planned Development which proposed 200 tiny home residential units, a restaurant, community 
building and storage units; and 

WHEREAS, Section Two of Ordinance 2016-23 required submitting the final 
development plan of the Planned Development for the Mayor’s signature within 180 days of the 
ordinance adoption; and 

WHEREAS, the final development plan was not submitted for signature or recorded, 
therefore the Planned Development never became effective; and 

WHEREAS, Petitioner has filed an application to zone the Property within the 
Manufactured Housing Residential  District (R-4), and on January 28, 2019 the City of Salida 
Planning Commission considered the application and recommended that the City Council zone it 
as Manufactured Housing Residential District (R-4); and 

WHEREAS, as required by the Salida Municipal Code, the public hearing on the zoning 
application for the Property was held on February 19, 2019 at a regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Salida City Council. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SALIDA, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
 1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.   
 

2. The Property described on Exhibit A is hereby zoned Manufactured Housing 
Residential District (R-4). 

 
3. Promptly following adoption of this Ordinance, the City Administrator shall cause 

the terms of this Ordinance to be incorporated into the Official Zoning Map of the City pursuant 
to Section 16-4-210 of the Salida Municipal Code.  The signed original copy of the Zoning Map 
shall be filed with the City Clerk.  The Clerk shall also record a certified copy of this Ordinance 
with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder.  The City staff is further directed to comply with all 
provisions of the Salida Land Use Regulations, SMC §16-1-10, et seq., to implement the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
4. Prior to development of the Property, the Angler’s Ridge Annexation Agreement 

must be amended to address affordability for Chaffee County workforce; infrastructure 
requirements; open space and trails.  

 
 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on February 5, 2019, ADOPTED and ORDERED 
PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City 
Council on the ____ day of __________, 2019 and set for second reading and public hearing on 
the 19th day of February, 2019. 
 
 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 
PUBLISHED IN FULL, by the City Council on the 19th day of February, 2019. 
 

 
CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 
 

  
P.T. Wood, Mayor 

 [SEAL] 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

  
City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 
 

 



PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ____ day of 
__________, 2019, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the ____day of __________, 
2019. 

 
 

  
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 



 

719.539.1675 325 D Street, P.O. Box 924, Salida, CO 81201 
719.221.1799  crabtreegroupinc.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

  

REZONING & CONCEPTUAL RV PARK REPORT 
CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

JOE DELUCA 
Crabtree Group Inc. 
Salida, Colorado 
Project No. #18054 

OCTOBER 1, 2018 



 

i 

Contents 

1 Executive Summary .................................................................................................................... 1 

2 Re-zoning Application ................................................................................................................. 4 

3 Recreational Vehicle Park Concept ............................................................................................ 7 

4 RV Code Reference Section ...................................................................................................... 11 

 

 



 

10/1/2018   
 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The subject property is the owned by Sprout Tiny Homes, LLC and was annexed in 2015.  The 
parcel is Tract 1 of the Cleora Tracts Plat, Assessor Parcel No. 380709100061.  The Annexation is 
the City of Salida/Angler’s Ridge Annexation.  This annexation annexed the Papp property on the 
west side of the river and three City properties incorporating the wastewater treatment plant.  

 

Annexation Map 

The property was zoned Residential Mixed Use to accommodate a restaurant, IBC manufactured 
home rental community and a storage unit complex for the residents of the rental community. 



 

10/1/2018   
 

 

Sprout Tiny Homes Planned Development 

A Planned Development zoning overlay was submitted and approved to allow 200 tiny home IBC 
Manufactured Housing units in the rental community.  The PD overlay approved manufactured 
homes similar to an R4 zone.  The PD also approved the restaurant and storage unit use.  The PD 
was approved by Planning Commission and Council, but the applicant did not complete a 
development agreement and the PD Plat was not signed or filed by the City. 

A brief outline of the previous Planned Development: 

• 100 One-bedroom IBC Manufactured Homes 
• 100 Two-bedroom IBC Manufactured Homes 
• 1 50-seat Restaurant 
• 1 Community Building 

o Management Office 
o Laundry 
o Catering Kitchen 
o Exercise Room 
o Community Room 



 

10/1/2018   
 

• 96 Storage Units 
• CR 102 as the only City Street 
• County maintained ownership of the CR 102 Bridge 
• CDOT access permit obtained and filed with County as Owner with no highway 

improvements required. 
• 1,320-foot trail easement to be dedicated along the river along with a fishing easement in 

trade for open space in lieu of fees. 
• Internal streets to be private and privately maintained. 
• City water and sewer. 
• Private sewer lift station required. 
• 12.5% of the 133 long term rental units to be affordable rentals; 15 units @ 80% AMI and 2 

@ 65% AMI. 

The developer was unable to obtain financing for the project or financial partners.  The land was 
put up for sale. 

The current applicant has a purchase agreement on the property contingent on a rezoning to R4 
and intends to submit a development application for a Recreational Vehicle Park. 

This application includes a rezoning from RMU to R4 Manufactured Housing Residential District 
rezoning and a conceptual review for a Recreational Vehicle Park.  Recreational Vehicle Parks are 
an allowed use per Table 16-D of the zoning. 

A future zoning and subdivision application may be submitted at a later date for the storage units 
shown in the RV concept plan. 

  



 

10/1/2018   
 

2 RE-ZONING APPLICATION  

The request is to rezone the parcel from the currently zoned Residential Mixed Use (RMU) to 
Manufactured Housing Residential (R-4). 

The purpose of the rezoning request is to change the zoning to fit the proposed use of a Recreational 
Vehicle Park.  Recreational Vehicle Parks are an allowed use in the R4 zone with a Limited Impact Review. 

 

The site is located on CR105 on the east side of the river between the City Municipal Sewer Plant 
(Zoned City Industrial) and is surrounded on two sides by County Industrial zoned land.  The site 
was previously zoned County Industrial prior to the annexation.  The location is remote from City 
residential areas and is readily accessible directly by U.S. Highway 50. 



 

10/1/2018   
 

 

City Zoning Map 

 

County Zoning Map 

  

Site RMU 

Industrial 

County 
Industrial 



 

10/1/2018   
 

REQUESTED ZONING 

  

PROPOSED 
R4 



 

10/1/2018   
 

3 RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARK CONCEPT 

The development concept is a high quality Recreational Vehicle Park with excellent amenities and 
service to attract a portion of the RV travel business that is underserved in Chaffee County. 

The area within 3 miles of the City of Salida is under served with available Recreational Vehicle 
spaces. 

Four Seasons RV Park in the same area as this application has 67 sites and is fully booked during 
the peak season months.  This park located in unincorporated Chaffee County.  A high percentage 
of the spaces are rented for the season. 

Eastside Park appears to cater to long term Mobile homes, and Park Models and is the only park 
that shows up in internet listings in the City Limits. 

The community would benefit by capturing a larger segment of the RV market if more sites were 
available in the area near the City.  RV visitors would generate sales tax as do all tourists. 

The location is well suited to an R4 use and an RV park as it is accessible without causing any 
traffic congestion on City Streets.  The site is on the River and has great views of the mountains. 

The intent is to only rent RV spaces to owners of Trailers, Motorhomes, Park Models or Tiny 
Homes on wheels, which are classified as RVs.  

The RV concept makes use of the general layout plan from the Sprout Tiny Home design for 
interior roads, storage unit site, riverside trail, park area and service building. 

The Recreational Vehicle spaces will meet or exceed the City Standards.  The intent of the concept 
is to provide nightly, weekly, monthly, seasonal and annual rentals of RV spaces.  The purpose of 
the annual rentals is to allow clients to purchase a park model for a site and skirt the park model 
for four seasons use.  This is very common in Recreational Vehicle Parks around Colorado.  For 
example, Four Seasons has four Park Models which they rent year-round. 

Code Section 16-4-190e requires a minimum site size of 10-foot-wide x 30 foot deep.  Typical sites 
for this premium RV Park will be 30 - 40 feet wide and 35 to 60 feet deep. 

A development concept is attached. 



 

10/1/2018   
 

 

Park Model Exterior 



 

10/1/2018   
 

 

Park Model Interior 



 

10/1/2018   
 

RV Site 

  



 

10/1/2018   
 

4 RV CODE REFERENCE SECTION 

Section 16-4-190e 

Sec. 16-4-190. Review Standards Applicable to Particular Uses. 

(e) Recreational Vehicle Park. A recreational vehicle park shall comply with the standards of the underlying zone 
district, except as otherwise specified herein. RV parks are allowed in the R4 Zone.  
 (1) Minimum Park Size. A recreational vehicle park shall be developed and operated on a site of at least three (3) 
acres. The proposed site is 18.45 acres. 
(2) Minimum Space Size. Each recreational vehicle unit space shall contain a surfaced area of not less than ten (10) 
feet by thirty (30) feet. Surfacing shall consist of asphalt, concrete or not less than four (4) inches of gravel, with 
edging required. A recreational vehicle shall be parked in its entirety on the surfaced area. The space sizes will be a 
minimum of 30 feet wide by 45 feet long exceeding the standard.  The pads will meet the surfacing requirements.  
(3) Minimum Setbacks for Recreational Vehicles. The minimum setback requirements for all permanent structures 
and recreation vehicles shall be as follows:  
a. Perimeter. A minimum of fifteen (15) feet from all boundaries of the park. Recreation Area. Will meet this 
standard. 
a. Minimum standard. A usable area amounting to not less than ten percent (10%) of the gross area of the park shall 
be designated and improved by the developer for recreation use. The recreation area shall not include any area 
designated as a roadway, unit space, parking area or storage area, and shall be conveniently located and free from all 
natural hazards. The recreation area shall count toward the minimum landscape area standard of the underlying zone 
district. The park areas on the site will meet this standard.  
b. Assurances. As part of the application for the recreational vehicle park, the developer shall submit assurances 
acceptable to the City that the recreation area will be improved in a timely way so as to be suitable for active 
recreation use in accordance with the approved plan and adequately maintained for as long as the park is in existence.  
(5) Landscaping. Landscaping shall be required for an area amounting to not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the 
gross area of the park. The landscape area may include the recreation area and common landscape areas, and shall 
include a landscape area provided within the required perimeter setback to effectively screen or buffer the park from 
surrounding properties. The required landscape area shall comply with Section 16-7-40 of this Chapter. The 
landscaping plan will comply with the code requirements.  
(6) Utilities Installation and Connection.  
a. Code compliance. Utility installations and connection taps shall be installed to comply with all state and local 
regulations and codes. Electrical installations shall comply with all state and local electrical codes.  
b. Underground. All utilities, except major power transmission lines, shall be placed underground.  
c. Lighting. Adequate lighting shall be provided in compliance with the standards of Section 16-7-60 of this Chapter.  
(7) Fire Protection. Every recreational vehicle park shall be equipped at all times with fire extinguishing equipment 
in good working order of such type, size and number and so located within the park as prescribed by the Fire 
Marshal, with reference to the City's fire code. Fire hydrants shall be installed to comply with City standards and fire 
codes.  
(8) Roadways and Walkways.  
a. Private. Internal roadways and walkways within the recreational vehicle park shall be privately owned, built and 
maintained, and shall be designed for safe access to all spaces, parking areas, service buildings and recreation areas.  
b. Entrance. The entrance to the recreational vehicle park shall be from a public road. The entrance shall not be 
located closer than one hundred fifty (150) feet to any public street intersection, shall be a minimum of thirty (30) 
feet in width, and shall be designed to comply with minimum American Association of State Highway and 
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) standards. Roadways will comply with the standards.  
(9) Location of Unit.  



 

10/1/2018   
 

a. Obstruction prohibited. No recreational vehicle shall be parked so that any part of such unit will obstruct any 
roadway or walkway in a park.  
b. Locating on approved space. No unit shall be occupied in a park unless the unit is located on an approved unit 
space.  
(10) Dump Stations. Dump stations may be installed, in accordance with City specifications.  As all spaces will be 
full hook up, there will not be a dump station. 
(11) Refuse and Garbage. Every four (4) recreational vehicle spaces shall have provided one (1) container for trash 
and garbage and a rack or holder at a permanent location for the same. Trash and garbage containers shall be located 
within one hundred (100) feet of any unit space they serve. Trash containers will be in compliance.  
(12) Service Building. A service building shall be installed in all recreational vehicle parks. The number and type of 
facilities required to be contained in the building shall be as shown in Table 16-C. The service building shall also 
meet the following standards: The community building on the plan will meet the standards below 
a. Private compartments. Each water closet, bath or shower shall be in a private compartment and shall meet the 
requirements of the City's plumbing code.  
b. Sound-retardant wall. A sound-retardant wall shall separate the toilet facilities for each sex when provided in a 
single building.  
c. Utility sink. A minimum of one (1) utility sink shall also be provided for disposal of liquid wastes and for clean-up 
and maintenance of the service building.  
d. Construction. The service building shall be of permanent construction and be provided with adequate light, heat 
and positive ventilation in shower and bathing areas. Interior construction of the service building shall use cleanable, 
moisture resistant materials on walls, ceilings and floors, and use slip-resistant materials on floors.  
e. Openings screened. All windows, doors or other openings shall be screened to keep out insects.  
f. Plumbing. All plumbing shall conform to the most recently adopted version of the building code and the local 
plumbing code. Hot and cold running water shall be provided in the service building.  
g. Telephones. At least two (2) public telephones shall be provided at the service building. 

Section 16-4-190 i Recreational Vehicles.  This section does not apply to RV Parks, it applies to residential 
and commercial properties not approved for an RV Park 
(1) Except as otherwise provided for in this section, recreational vehicles may be occupied for residential or 
commercial use for no more than five (5) days on private property within a thirty (30) day period. Otherwise, 
recreational vehicles shall be used for human occupancy only when permitted as a conditional use in accordance with 
this Chapter or when located within a lawful mobile home park or recreational vehicle park. Occupancy of a 
recreational vehicle for commercial or residential use in excess of this limit shall be deemed a long-term occupancy 
of such vehicle and shall only be permitted as a conditional use in designated zone districts in accordance with the 
standards of such underlying zone district and as specified herein.  



 

10/1/2018   
 

(2) Long-term occupancy of recreational vehicles for residential or commercial use shall only be permitted as a 
conditional use in accordance with Tables 16-D, respectively, if the following standards are met.  
a. The recreational vehicle proposed for long-term occupancy must be located on a previously established mobile 
home site.  
b. All long-term occupancy recreational vehicles shall have a minimum square footage of one hundred twenty (120) 
square feet and hard-sided exteriors. No soft-sided exteriors shall be permitted.  
c. The minimum setbacks for long-term occupancy recreational vehicles shall meet the standards for a primary 
structure in the underlying zone district.  
d. Each long-term occupancy recreational vehicle shall count towards one unit of a lot’s allowed density. Long-term 
occupancy recreational vehicles shall not exceed the permitted density for any lot.  
e. Long-term occupancy recreational vehicles shall be separated from each other and from other structures by at least 
ten (10) feet. Any accessory structure such as attached awnings or carport shall be considered part of the recreational 
vehicle for purposes of this requirement.  
f. Landscaping shall be installed to meet the underlying zone district standards in compliance with Section 16-8-90 of 
this Chapter.  
g. Utility installations and connection taps shall be installed to comply with all state and local regulations and codes. 
Electrical installations shall comply with all state and local electrical codes. All utilities, except major power 
transmission lines, shall be placed underground.  
h. Lighting. Adequate lighting shall be provided in compliance with the standards of Section 16-8-100 of this 
Chapter.  
i. Water and wastewater fees and charges shall be paid in compliance with Chapter 13 of this Code.  
j. Only one access shall be granted to a site with long-term occupancy recreational vehicles. The access point must be 
from an alley where alley access is available.  
k. Parking. One additional parking space for every recreational vehicle shall be provided in compliance with Section 
16-8-80 of this Chapter.  
l. Every long-term occupancy recreational vehicle shall be equipped at all times with fire extinguishing equipment in 
good working order of such type, size and number and so located as prescribed by the Fire Marshal, with reference to 
the City’s standards and fire codes. 



SKETCH PLAN
RIVER VIEW AT CLEORA

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR APPROXIMATE FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNITY BUILDING AND OFFICE 5,000 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV CHECK-IN PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV CHECK-IN PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20)  9X18' SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6) SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARKANSAS RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIMMONS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
D&RG STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
D&RG STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNITY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (21)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV PULL THRU (4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALE CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERVIEW DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALENA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUSHNELL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK MODEL (6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM (1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (9)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV PULL THRU (8)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (14)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (8)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100-YR  APPROXIMATE  FLOODPLAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEORA PARK 5.5 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK MODEL (3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV (3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BRIDGE TO US 50

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO SALIDA WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK MODEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARKANSAS RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALIDA, CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCTOBER, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL RV SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPARK MODEL (PERP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
6994

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U131 TOTAL UNITS



From: Joe DeLuca
To: Kristi Jefferson (kristi.jefferson@cityofsalida.com); Glen Van Nimwegen (glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com)
Cc: Brian Morrison (brian@tkmorrison.com); Bill Hussey; Tracy Vandaveer; Paul Crabtree
Subject: Proposed revised Annexation Agreement for Sprout
Date: Thursday, January 17, 2019 8:34:36 AM
Attachments: Angler"s Ridge Proposed Changes.docx

Kristi and Glen,
 
Attached is a proposed revision for the Annexation Agreement for Sprout.  It is in word with tracked
changes.  If the tracked changes do not show up turn on track changes and show mark-up.
 
Our goal was to maintain as much as possible of the original annexation agreement as possible, such
as the river trail, etc.
 
Our intent is to maintain the 12.5% affordability.  The challenge is there is not published data to set
pricing an RV space, so here is what we are proposing.  The RV spaces for the 12.5% affordability
would be priced at the same discount percentage as one bedroom or studio rental housing (similar
square footage as a RV trailer).  So if the average market rate for a single bedroom is $1200. Per
month and the housing tables show it should rent for $792 @ 80% ami which is a 33% reduction
from market then the RV park would rent the space on a yearly lease at a 33% discount from its
published rates.  We would also agree that the rental rate could not exceed the $792 per month.
 We would maintain the 2 units at 65% AMI with a similar calculation.  So if we have 150 RV spaces
for example there would be 19 affordable units, 17 at 80% ami and 2 at 65% ami. Maintaining the 2
units at 65% ami even though Sprout was 200 units.
 
I discussed this with Becky Gray and she thought it was a reasonable way to set the prices based on
published Colorado Affordable housing data for our area.
 
I believe for someone who owns a camper trailer, an RV park could be in the same range of
affordability as a large Multi-family (32 units or greater) single bedroom or efficiency annual lease. 
Also shorter term leases would be available at monthly, and ½ year rates which provides something
that is not available currently in housing.  This works well for contractors, contract nurses, etc. that
don’t need an annual lease.  To my knowledge no one wants to do short term leases in this area
because they can fill their spots with annual leases.  So this project fits a niche for transitional
workers, part time workers, individuals that own a camper trailer or other RV type unit that currently
is not fulfilled.
 
It is my opinion that the more we fulfill the full range of housing types (wider diversity of housing
types) the more positive impact there will be on the housing shortage.
 
In the 1970’s and 1980s RV parks and mobile home parks provided a significant number of homes
for low wage earners, as we have gentrified the valley we have eliminated some of the housing type
diversity.
 
Item of interest, in California they are actually considering placing tiny homes, camper trailers and
park models in parking lots at the larger tech employers to solve their housing crisis

mailto:jdeluca@crabtreegroupinc.com
mailto:kristi.jefferson@cityofsalida.com
mailto:glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com
mailto:brian@tkmorrison.com
mailto:bhussey@crabtreegroupinc.com
mailto:tvandaveer@crabtreegroupinc.com
mailto:pcrabtree@crabtreegroupinc.com

ANNEXATION AGREEMENT



THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of 	, 2016, by and between the CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, a Colorado statutory city (hereinafter “City”), and Sprout Tiny Homes, LLC (hereinafter “Owner”).



W I T N E S S E T H:



WHEREAS, in October, 2016, Owner filed an Annexation Petition with the Salida City Clerk requesting that the Salida City Council commence proceedings to annex to the City a certain unincorporated tract of land located in the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado, known as the Angler’s Ridge Annexation and more particularly described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”); and



WHEREAS, the City and Owner desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their agreements concerning the terms and conditions of the annexation of the Property to the City and the zoning and development of the Property; and



WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing to consider annexation of the Property on February 2, 2016, and on February 2, 2016 annexed the Property by Ordinance    No. 6, Series of 2016, and zoned the Property with the Residential Mixed Use (RMU) zone district by Ordinance No. 9, Series of 2016.



NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the City and Owner agree as follows:



1. Purpose. The purpose of this document as an Annexation Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions of the annexation, zoning, and development of the Property. Moreover, the parties agree and acknowledge that it is their intent that this Agreement shall be enforceable as an annexation agreement, and that Owner waives any objection to the enforcement of this document as a contractual obligation consistent with annexation agreements. Thus, this Agreement is intended to provide a contractual relationship between the City and Owner to ensure compliance with all requirements contained herein, including, but not limited to restrictions upon the zoning of the Property stated herein. All conditions herein are in addition to any and all requirements of the City of Salida Municipal Code (hereinafter the "Code") and any and all state statutes.



2. Binding Effect.



a. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the City, Owner, and any party succeeding to any interest of Owner in and to the Property. The obligations (specifically including, but not limited to, the payment of fees and compliance with any zoning requirements and covenant obligations as may be referenced herein) that run with the land following approval shall be limited to those set forth herein or in any other development approval document, and any exhibits or attachments thereto.

b. 

 (
6
)



c. This Agreement and any other agreement(s) between the City and Owner may be enforced, amended, modified, removed, or released only by the City, Owner, and any party succeeding to any interest of Owner in and to any part of the Property.



3. Development Proposal. The Salida Planning Commission on January 12, 2016, recommended zoning of Residential Mixed Use (RMU) and subject to conditions stated in the Planning Department’s staff report regarding the application.     At its February 2, 2016 meeting, the City Council approved zoning of the Property as Residential Mixed Use (RMU).  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted to limit, restrict, or abrogate in any way the power or authority of the City to rezone the Property or any portion thereof at any time after annexation, either on its own motion or in response to a zoning petition. The Owner subsequently requested a rezoning to R4, Manufactured Housing Residential District in 2018. The Salida Planning Commission on January ____, 2019 recommended rezoning from (RMU) to (R4) and subject to the conditions stated in the Planning Department’s staff report regarding the application.  At is ____________2019 meeting the City Council approved rezoning of the parcel from (RMU) to (R4).



4. Utility and Municipal Services. The City shall provide the Property the usual and customary municipal services provided by the City within its municipal limits generally, in accordance with the ordinances and policies of the City. Water and sewer service are available on a “first come, first served” basis, and the availability of such services is determined at the time application therefor is made. Limitations upon the availability of City utility service may exist from time to time. The Property shall be subject to all policies, ordinances, rules, regulations, platting restrictions, and permitting procedures currently in effect or enacted in the future to allocate or regulate the use of the City’s utility resources generally throughout the City.



a. Water and Sanitary Sewer Service. The City shall provide water and sanitary sewer services to the Property upon the same basis as such services are provided to other properties within the City, subject to the rules and regulations of the City’s water and wastewater utilities in the Salida Municipal Code, as now or hereafter constituted.



b. Fire Protection Services. The City shall provide fire protection services to the Property upon the same basis as such services are provided to other properties within the City.



c. Police Services. The City shall provide police services to the Property upon the same basis as such services are provided to other property within the City.



d. Electric, Natural Gas, Telephone, Cable TV, and Other Utility Services. The City does not provide electric, natural gas, telephone, or cable TV facilities or services. Such services are available within the City from private entities. The extension of such services to the Property is not the obligation or responsibility of the City.



e. Transportation Services. The City shall maintain duly dedicated and accepted public streets and roads within its municipal boundaries which serve the Property, both on and off-site, upon the same basis as such services are provided to other properties within the City.

f. 

5. Fees, Dedications, and Improvements for the Proposed Development of the Property.  Owner agrees to pay to the City the fees in the amounts and times set forth below:



a. Processing Fees. All fees and costs hereto incurred by the City, including but not limited to engineering, surveying, and legal services rendered in connection with the review, preparation, negotiation, resolution, and finalization of any annexation, zoning, and subdivision review of the Property by the City, including recording fees, and any and all other out-of-pocket costs incurred by the City shall be paid by Owner. Interest shall be imposed at rate of 1.5% per month on all balances not paid within thirty (30) days of the date of the statement. In addition to any and all remedies available to the City and in the event the City is forced to pursue collection of any amounts due and unpaid under this provision or under this Agreement, the City shall be entitled to collect attorney’s fees and costs incurred in said collection efforts in addition to the amount due and unpaid.



b. Fees as a Condition of Annexation. Any fees that may be required by this Agreement and the Code to be paid by Owner shall continue to be an obligation of Owner, and subsequent lot owners, even if the Code provisions are declared to be invalid. Payment of such fees pursuant to this Agreement is agreed to by and between the parties as a condition of annexation and, as such, Owner agrees that all such fees, whether in effect in the City by ordinance or not (if repealed or not in effect, the last fee in effect shall apply and be paid), shall be imposed on them and as a condition of any development review. Owner further agrees not to contest the validity of such fees or any ordinance imposing such fees as they pertain to the Property. This obligation to pay such fees shall be a covenant running with the land and shall bind Owner and any party succeeding to any interest of Owner in and to any part of the Property which has not been granted Final Subdivision Plat approval, and to any future lot owners, both as provided for in Paragraph 2 above.



c. Owner shall dedicate public access for a river trail along the bank of the Arkansas River twenty-five (25) feet in width from the ordinary water line from the upstream Property boundary to the downstream Property boundary of approximately 1,650 feet in length. The Owner shall connect said trail to County Road 102 at two points, one on the upstream end and one at the downstream end. Said trail and connections shall be  eight (8) to ten (10) feet wide and constructed from a durable crusher fines or similar gravel material on a compacted base. The Owner agrees to construct said trail and connections prior to the build-out of sixty (60) percent of the Recreational Vehicle Spacesresidential units. The dedication of the river trail shall be considered an extraordinary contribution and fulfill the requirements for public land dedication. 



d. Owner shall provide for, construct, and maintain on the Property a minimum of 2.4 acres of private park space appropriate for the continuous use and enjoyment of Recreational Vehicle Park customersall residents, whether tenants or owners, on the Property. Owner shall maintain such park space to levels typical of frequently used public open spaces, and in keeping with best health and safety practices. The City shall have the right but not the affirmative or binding duty, to enter onto the Property, with ten (10) days prior notice, to correct or maintain the condition of such park space. In the event the City undertakes such correction or maintenance, Owner shall pay the actual costs of such correction or maintenance activity plus ten percent (10%) within thirty (30) days of billing. 

e. The Owner shall pay in lieu of land dedication or conveyance for a public school facility an amount of three hundred fifty-four dollars ($354.00) per residential dwelling unit. The Owner may elect for such amount to be paid by the owner of a particular lot and /or unit at the time a residential building permit is obtained.



f. The Owner shall dedicate public utility easements for all City water and sewer mains in the development.



g. The City shall allow one (1) three-quarter (¾) inch commercial water tap for every six (6) units, and each bedroom shall constitute a “unit”, without laundry facilities. The Owner takes full responsibility for pressure and flow considerations. This allowance is only valid if the Property is under single ownership and water and service fees are paid by the Property Owner. Should the Property be later subdivided, converted to condos, townhomes or for sale lots, each unit will be required to purchase water and sewer taps.



h. The City shall negotiate a 10- year utility cost sharing reimbursement agreement for adjoining properties connecting into the water and sewer force mains extended by this annexation.



i. Interior streets shall be privately owned and maintained and built to City of Salida design standards for RV Parks, including a minimum sixty (60) foot wide right-of-way. The Owner or future owner(s), whether a single entity, representative H.O.A., or any other form of entity, shall privately maintain interior streets in perpetuity. Owner shall maintain such streets in good and safe condition, and in keeping with best practices for road maintenance. The City shall have the right but not the affirmative or binding duty, to enter onto the Property, with ten (10) days prior notice, to correct or maintain the condition of such interior streets. In the event the City undertakes such correction or maintenance, Owner shall pay the actual costs of such correction or maintenance activity plus ten percent (10%) within thirty (30) days of billing.





j. All interior streets shall be comprised of two (2) eleven twelve (121) foot wide travel lanes, and back in angled parking shall be allowed. No curbs or gutters shall be required. Parking spaces may be constructed of a permeable surface, such as compacted crusher fines of similar material, as long as parking is properly designated with parking stop blocks or other methods acceptable to the City. The street and parking right-of-ways shall be designated as non-exclusive public utility easements for water, sewer, electric, gas, phone, cable, etc.



k. Internal Streets within the Property shall have dedicated public utility easements. The streets will be privately maintained by the Owner or current ownership. The City will not be responsible for maintenance, replacement, or snow removal of streets and appurtances.



l. The City shall accept, upon final completion and inspection by the City, all water mains, gravity sewer mains, and sewer force mains following a one (1) year warranty period, during which time Owner shall be responsible for any and all operational and maintenance requirements as well as any and all defect repairs.



m. In the case of underground utility repairs, the City shall complete the asphalt patches resulting from the repair to the City standards for asphalt patching in force at the time of the repair and shall have no liability for any other street repairs or improvements as a result of the utility repair.



n. The City will accept, upon final completion and inspection by the City, the sewer lift station following a one (1) year warranty period, during which time Owner shall be responsible for any and all operational and maintenance requirements as well as any and all defect repairs. Following the warranty period, the Owner or future owner(s), whether a single entity, H.O.A., or any other form of entity, shall pay the City an annual operations maintenance and replacement fee of $6,000.00 per year in addition to monthly sewer service fees.

o. 

p. The City will allow a temporary manufacturing facility for the purpose of constructing Tiny Homes located within the development. The temporary manufacturing facility will generally be located adjacent to County Road 102 and the Wastewater Treatment Facility. The temporary manufacturing facility shall be allowed for a period of five (5) years starting on the date the building permit for said temporary manufacturing facility is approved. At the end of the 5 year period the use of the temporary manufacturing facility for construction shall cease and the facility removed. 



q. The Owner will improve and asphalt D&RG Drive (CR102) from the Bridge to the Wastewater Treatment Gate. The improvements shall include a sixty (60) foot right-of-way with two (2) eleven (11) foot travel lanes, a two (2) foot gravel shoulder and seventeen (17) foot bioswale on the east side of the road for drainage and snow storage. Adjacent to the development the improvements shall include an eight (8) foot parallel parking area and eleven (11) foot wide public trail.



r. The City will accept the annexed portion of CR102 (D&RG Drive) as a City maintained street.



s. The Owner will stub 8- inch water main and 4 inch sewer force main utilities across D&RG Drive to provide future connection to adjoining properties with the condition of a ten year prorated utility reimbursement, not to exceed 50% of the cost of construction, by the connecting properties for the extension completed by the Owner.



t. The Owner agrees to the condition that no more than 1/3rd of the total number of rental units may be short term rentals (less than 30 days).



u. The Owner volunteers and agrees that twelve and one-half percent (12.5%), rounded to the nearest whole number, of the long-term rental units RV Rental spaces shall be restricted and rented to qualifying individuals with full time jobs in Chaffee County based upon the most recently published Colorado Housing and Finance Authority Income and Rent Tables for Colorado Counties. Maximum rents for the rent-restricted units shall be determined by a formula mutually determined by the Chaffee County Housing Office the number of bedrooms in each unit, with two (2) efficiency units rented to individuals who earn sixty-five percent (65%) of the Chaffee County Area Median Income (“AMI”) and the remaining units of the twelve and one-half percent (12.5%) rented to individuals who earn eighty percent (80%) of the Chaffee County AMI. Those units rented at eighty percent (80%) of AMI shall be a representative mix of unit sizes found throughout the Property development. The Owner shall provide an annual report to the City Council showing compliance with these requirements. Should no applicant qualify for the rent-restricted units, the units may be rented for six months and then be returned to the rent-restricted pool of twelve and one-half percent (12.5%).



v. The Owner agrees to pay occupancy tax and sales tax as required by the latest adopted City Codes for short term rentals and comply with any and all adopted regulations.



w. Site lighting will be “dark sky compliant”, non-grid connected solar lighting.



x. The existing well shall be limited to non-domestic use. 



y. The Owner shall add a note to the annexation plat and Planned Development documents informing future tenants, owners, and/or interested parties that the project is located adjacent to the City of Salida Wastewater Treatment Plant and that objectionable odors and/or dust may exist from time to time. Additionally, the Owner shall inform tenants and potential tenants, in writing, or by way of lease documents, that the project is located adjacent to the City of Salida Wastewater Treatment Plant and that objectionable odors and/or dust may exist from time to time. 



6. Zoning. Owner desires and consents to Residential Mixed Use (RMU) Residential Manufactured Housing  (R4) zoning for the Property as set forth in Ordinance No. 9, Series of 2016.  Upon annexation and zoning of    the Property, the Property shall be subject to and adhere to all zoning regulations of the City that are applicable to the Property, including as described in Paragraph 7 below, as they may be

amended, and any non-conforming uses on the Property shall cease and desist within one (1) year from the date of annexation. In that one (1) year period, there shall be no expansion of any non- conforming uses.



7. Planned Development Overlay Zone. Owner or future owner(s), whether a single entity, representative H.O.A., or any other form of entity, shall develop a Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) zone district suitable for the Property as approved of by the City and required by the City Code. No other development of the Property shall commence without approval of such PUD without the parties’ mutual execution of an amendment to this Agreement.



8. Breach by Owner; City Remedies. In the event of a material breach of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement by Owner, the City may take any action necessary or appropriate, including:



a. The refusal to issue any building permit or Certificate of Occupancy to Owner; provided, however, that this remedy shall not be available to the City until after the affidavit described in subparagraph b., below, has been recorded; provided further this remedy shall not be available against a bona fide third party;



b. The recording with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder of an Affidavit, approved in writing by the City Attorney and signed by the City Administrator or her designee, stating that the terms and conditions of this Agreement have been breached by Owner. At the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting, the City Council shall either approve the filing of said affidavit or direct the City Administrator to file a second affidavit stating that the default has been cured and nullifying the previous affidavit. Upon the recording of such an affidavit, no further parcels or portions thereof may be sold until the default has been cured; an affidavit signed by the City Administrator or her designee and approved by the City Council stating that the default has been cured shall remove this restriction and be sufficient evidence when recorded that the default has been cured;



c. A demand that any security given for completion of the public improvements be paid or honored;



d. The refusal to allow further development review for the Property; or



e. Any other remedy available in equity or at law.



Unless necessary to protect the immediate health, safety, and welfare of the City, the City shall provide Owner ten (10) days’ written notice of its intent to take any action under this paragraph, during which 10-day period Owner may cure the breach described in said notice and prevent further action by the City. In the event the breach is not cured within the 10-day period, the City will consider whether Owner has undertaken reasonable steps to timely complete the cure if additional time is required. Furthermore, unless and until an affidavit as described in subparagraph b., above, has been recorded with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder, any

person dealing with Owner shall be entitled to assume that no default by Owner has occurred hereunder.



9. Waiver of Defects. In executing this Agreement, Owner waives all objections it may have over defects, if any, in the form of this Agreement, the formalities for execution, concerning the power of the City to impose conditions on Owner as set forth herein or over the procedure, substance, and form of the ordinances or resolutions adopting this Agreement.



10. Final Agreement. This Agreement supersedes and controls all prior written and oral agreements and representations of the parties, and is the total integrated agreement between the parties.



11. Modifications. This Agreement shall not be amended or modified, except by subsequent written agreement of the parties.



12. Release of Liability. It is expressly understood that the City cannot be legally bound by the representations of any of its officers or agents, or their designees, except in accordance with the City Code and ordinances and the laws of the State of Colorado, and that Owner, when dealing with the City, acts at its own risk as to any representation or undertaking by the City or its officers or agents, or their designees, which is subsequently held unlawful by a court of law, which is in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado; provided, however, that this paragraph shall not be construed to limit the rights and remedies of the parties otherwise provided by law, including under equitable doctrines of estoppel and the like.



13. Indemnity.



a. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and the City's agents and employees from and against claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees and costs, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense arises out of or from the following circumstances: any and all claims which may arise as a result of approving the annexation, any approval given during development review of the Property or, except to the extent of any actual negligence on the part of the City, its agents, and employees, in connection with any road or sidewalk enlargement, extension, realignment, improvement, or maintenance, or approval thereof, or any other item contained in this Agreement.



b. Owner shall reimburse the City at the City's direction for all legal fees, expenses, and costs incurred in any action brought against the City as a result of the City's approval of this annexation, and shall reimburse the City for all costs, including attorneys' fees and costs associated with any referendum election, the review of petition for referendum, protest, or any other challenge procedures to the annexation and zoning. However, nothing herein shall obligate or compel the City to take any position, stand, or proceed with any action or referendum position other than as the City Council, in its sole discretion, decides.



14. Voluntary Agreement. Owner agrees to comply with all of the terms and conditions of this Annexation Agreement on a voluntary and contractual basis, as a condition of annexation to the City. Owner agrees that the payment of all fees required under this Agreement is a condition of annexation and, therefore all such fees, whether in effect in the City by ordinance or not (if repealed or not in effect, the last fee in effect shall apply and be paid), shall be imposed on Owner as a condition of any development review. The obligation to pay such fees shall be a covenant running with the land and shall bind all successors in interest of Owner.



15. Election. Owner agrees that it is voluntarily entering into this Agreement. Owner represents and submits that, to the extent an election would be required pursuant to C.R.S. §31- 12-112, as amended, to approve the annexation or impose terms and conditions upon the Property to be annexed, Owner owns one hundred percent (100%) of the Property to be annexed, and would vote to approve the annexation and all terms and conditions as set forth herein. Thus, any election would necessarily result in a majority of the electors' approval to the annexation and the terms and conditions.



16. Owner Representations. All representations of Owner, either oral or as set forth in the annexation and zoning applications, as amended, and all documents subsequently submitted with reference thereto, shall be considered incorporated into this Annexation Agreement as if set forth in full herein. The City will, upon request from interested parties, including prospective purchasers of all or any portion of the Property, or lenders to be granted a security interest in all or any portion of the Property, and within a reasonable period of time (not exceeding ten (10) business days) following receipt of each such request, issue appropriate written certification as to the compliance, or lack thereof, with any of the provisions hereof, including any such written representations and documents.



17. Attorney Fees; Survival. Should this Agreement become the subject of litigation between the City and Owner, the prevailing party shall be entitled to attorneys' fees and costs of suit actually incurred, including expert witness fees.



18. Notice. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the addresses of the parties herein set forth. All notices so given shall be considered effective seventy-two (72) hours after deposit in the United States Mail with the proper address as set forth below. Either party by notice so given may change the address to which future notices shall be sent.





Notice to the City:	City of Salida

448 East First Street Salida, CO 81201



Notice to Owner:





19. Terms and Conditions as Consideration for Annexation. Owner acknowledges that the City is under no obligation to annex any property into the City of Salida city limits, and thus the City of  Salida’s  decision  to  annex  Owner’s  Property is  at  the City’s  sole discretion.    In consideration for the City’s agreement to annex, Owner agrees to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of such annexation contained herein, and further acknowledges that such conditions are a necessary condition of the City’s decision to annex the Property into the City of Salida municipal limits. Owner further agrees and acknowledges that its decision to proceed with annexation is a voluntary act of Owner and that Owner has the sole and absolute discretion to withdraw its petition for annexation in lieu of such voluntary act.



20. Contractual  Extension  of  Municipal  Services.	All  parties  hereto  agree  and acknowledge that the City of Salida is not obligated to sell or furnish any water or sewer services outside of its municipal limits to Owner and thus, in agreeing to provide such services, the City of Salida is acting in a proprietary capacity and the relationship entered into between the City of Salida and Owner and the terms and conditions of this Agreement are purely contractual in nature.

21. [bookmark: _GoBack]




WHEREFORE, the parties hereto have executed duplicate originals of this Agreement on the day and year first written above.

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO



By		 Mayor



ATTEST:







City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk







By			 Name	 Title	 	_____________







STATE OF COLORADO	)

) ss.

COUNTY OF	)



Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this 	day of 	20196 by

 	, as Mayor,  and by 	,  as Clerk, on behalf of the City of Salida, Colorado.



WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My Commission expires: 	.







Notary Public











STATE OF COLORADO	)

) ss.

COUNTY OF	)



Acknowledged, subscribed, and sworn to before me this 	day of 	20166 by

 	 as 	of 	.



WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My Commission expires: 	.







Notary Public























   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
 
                                                                                                                           Meeting Date: February 19, 2019  
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

6.a  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Drew Nelson and Glen Van Nimwegen 

   

  

    

 
 

ITEM:    
Appeal of Administrator Decision Regarding Water and Sewer System Development Fees for 1453 
K Street 
BACKGROUND: 
Thomas LeBaron is the owner of the above property (appellant).  He is appealing the 
Administrator’s decision to require sewer and water system development fees for the additional 
unit that was constructed within his home.  The dates and events that led to this decision are 
outlined below: 
 

1. August, 2017:  Mr. LeBaron applied for and was granted a building permit to remodel his 
single-family home.  His plans stated the “Occupancy will still be a residential home with 
single occupancy.” (Exhibit A) 

  
2. January, 2018:  He submitted a plan change to the above permit with a number of changes 

including new stairs, closet, change to a bathroom and “add kitchen to lower unit.”  The plan 
changes were reviewed and approved by Community Development staff. (Exhibit B) 

 
3. October, 2018:  When he checked with Chaffee County and Salida about final inspections 

and a Certificate of Occupancy, he was informed by Community Development staff that the 
addition of a kitchen to the project created an additional unit, and therefore he was 
responsible for sewer and water system development fees totaling $13,718. (Exhibit C) 

  
4. December, 2018:  After considering options presented to him, the appellant chose to 

remove the range from the “lower unit” thereby returning it to a single-residence.  
Community Development staff issued the Certificate of Occupancy. (Exhibit D) 

 
5. December, 2018:  Appellant was notified by his lender that the appraiser stated the property 

could not be appraised as a duplex as there was no range and the C of O was for a single 
residence. (Exhibit E) 

 
6. January 2, 2019:  Appellant submitted a letter to Administrator Drew Nelson and 

Community Development Director Glen Van Nimwegen stating his original submittal and 
plan change was very clear as to his intent.  “So thank you for following and honoring the 
written and approved agreement.” (Exhibit F) 

 
7. January 9, 2019:  The Administrator and CD Director met with Mr. LeBaron and determined 

that the agreement he was speaking of meant approve his property as two units, without 
the additional system fees, as he was not informed of these fees when the plan change was 
approved.  The Administrator explained his decision was the fees were required. 
 
At the meeting we discussed other options with Tom including: 
• Allowing him to pay the system development fees over a period of time to lessen the 

monthly financial impact. 
• Reduce size of lower unit to 700 square feet to meet Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 

standards; or request a variance from the Board of Adjustment to consider the additional 
unit as an ADU.  The fees for an ADU are reduced to $6,859. 



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
 
                                                                                                                           Meeting Date: February 19, 2019  
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

6.a  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Drew Nelson and Glen Van Nimwegen 

   

  

    

 
 

 
• Consider restricting the unit to an affordable standard and request Council reduce the 

system development fees. 
 

• Appeal the Administrator’s decision to the City Council per Section 13-2-300. Appeals. 
(Exhibit G) 

 
8. January 28, 2019:  Mr. LeBaron filed an appeal. (Exhibit H) 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Section 13-2-230. Change of Use of the Salida Municipal Code states “…the customer is required 
to notify the City within 30 days of the change of use so an account may be updated.”  A change in 
use includes adding to the number of residential units at a property and the customer is 
responsible for payment of any additional system development fees.  Additionally, if the change of 
use involves a building permit, the fees must be paid prior to issuance of the permit. (Exhibit I)  Mr. 
LeBaron had an active permit when he submitted revised plans that created an additional unit 
without calling out the change of use. (Exhibit J)   
 
The appellant is not a professional contractor.  Staff makes every effort to expeditiously and 
accurately process a homeowner’s request, but this was an instance that should have been more 
carefully scrutinized as we did not identify that the plan change created a separate unit.  The 
appellant should have been directed to complete a Change of Use Notification or start a new 
permit.  (Exhibit K) 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council uphold the Administrator’s decision to require additional system 
development fees in the amount of $13,718; and authorize staff to prepare an agreement which 
allows payment over time if requested by Mr. LeBaron. 
 
Exhibits 

A: Original Building Permit 
B: Plan Change Permit 
C: First Letter from Tom LeBaron 
D: Certificate of Occupancy 
E: Note from Lender 
F: Second Letter from Tom LeBaron 
G: Section 13-2-300. Appeals of the Salida Municipal Code 
H: Appeal Application 
I: Section 13-2-230. Change of Use of the Salida Municipal Code 
J: Plan Change form 
K: Change of Use form 



EXHIBIT A page 1 of 5



EXHIBIT A page 2 of 5



EXHIBIT A page 3 of 5



EXHIBIT A page 4 of 5



EXHIBIT A page 5 of 5



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT D





EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT F



Sec. 13-2-300. - Appeals. 

A customer or property owner may protest the final decision of the City Administrator made pursuant 
to this Chapter by filing a written appeal with the City Clerk within thirty (30) days after the issuance of 
such final decision. The appeal will be heard by the City Council within thirty (30) days of filing such 
appeal with the City Clerk. Any action or decision of the City Council made in response to an appeal 
under this Chapter shall be final.  

EXHIBIT G



EXHIBIT H



Sec. 13-2-230. - Change of use. 

(a) If a property changes in: (1) classification (i.e., residential to commercial or vice versa); (2) number
of residential and/or accessory units; (3) size of water or wastewater service line; or (4) type of
commercial use involving change of assigned EQR value, the customer is required to notify the City
within thirty (30) days of the change of use so the account may be updated.

(b) If the change in use involves (1) a change from residential to commercial use within five (5) years of
connection of services; (2) number of residential and/or accessory units; (3) size of water or
wastewater service line; or (4) type of commercial use involving change of assigned EQR value, the
customer shall be responsible for the payment of additional any system development fees within
thirty (30) days of issuance of the bill by the City. In cases where a building permit is required, no
building permit shall be issued prior to payment of the required fees.

(c) New service charges will be assigned based on the current use of the property to be effective with
the date of the change of use.

(d) Failure to timely report a change of use can subject the property to penalties up to and including
double the fees and usage charges for the new usage during the time the change was not reported.
When a change of use that has not been reported is identified by the City, a notice will be issued of
the change in rates to the property owner, and new rates will be billed for the current billing period.

(Ord. 2014-11) 

EXHIBIT I



EXHIBIT J

gvannimwegen
Highlight

gvannimwegen
Highlight

gvannimwegen
Highlight



EXHIBIT K page 1 of 2

gvannimwegen
Highlight

gvannimwegen
Highlight



EXHIBIT K page 2 of 2



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting Date: February 19, 
2019:   
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

6.b. 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Nina Williams 

  

BY:    

 

 
ITEM:    

Consideration of Ordinance 2019-05, amending the Salida Municipal Code as it related to municipal court 

and violation within the code carrying a possible penalty of imprisonment. 

BACKGROUND: 

Colorado House Bill 16-1309, “concerning a defendant’s right to counsel in certain cases considered by 

municipal courts”, recently became effective.  This bill added a new Colorado Revised Statue section in 

Title 13, Article 10, Municipal Courts, specifically C.R.S. section 13-10-114.5. In the legislative 

declaration of the act, the general assembly concluded that both the United States and Colorado 

constitutions provide that an accused person has the right to be represented by counsel in criminal 

prosecutions.  This constitutional right has further been interpreted by the State to mean that counsel will 

be provided, at a local government’s expense, for indigent persons in all cases in which incarceration is 

a possible penalty. 

This right to representation by counsel, and concurrent responsibility for the municipal court to provide 

and pay for such counsel, begins at the first appearance on a charge. If a defendant subsequently applies 

for a court-appointed counsel, the court must appoint one if the court determines: (1) that the person is 

indigent; and (2) that the charged offense includes a possible sentence of incarceration. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
In general, we recommend that Salida amend its code to “decriminalize” certain violations. We would delete 

terms like “imprisonment”, “incarceration”, and “jail”, except where necessary, or definitively desired from a 

policy perspective.  We recommend making most traffic violations civil, not criminal, in nature. The same 

consideration would apply for nuisance, property, animal and zoning violations.  Finally, we advise that you 

reduce many misdemeanors to violations, where it is appropriate and makes sense.  Because incarceration is 

a possible penalty of a misdemeanor conviction, not only would decriminalizing these types of offenses save 

the City the cost of hiring counsel for indigent defendants, it may very well be within the Council’s current 

policy goals of justice and fairness to update similar portions of its Code, depending on the violation.  Finally, 

crimes that probably should remain as misdemeanors include more serious charges such as: no proof of 

insurance, reckless driving, careless driving, high speed eluding, theft, disorderly conduct and assault. 

 

Attached is the applicable Ordinance, with the appropriate sections to amend within the Salida Municipal 

Code, based upon the above analysis.  

 
 
 



  

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 05 
(Series of 2019) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SALIDA, 

COLORADO AMENDING THE SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE AS IT 

RELATES TO MUNICIPAL COURT AND VIOLATIONS WITHIN THE CODE 

CARRYING A POSSIBLE PENALTY OF IMPRISONMENT  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401, the City of Salida, Colorado (“City”), acting 

by and through its City Council (“Council”), possesses the authority to adopt laws and ordinances 

within its police power in furtherance of the public health, safety and welfare; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to this authority, the City has previously adopted certain code 

provisions, general offenses and violations, and the penalties attached to them, codified in the 

Salida Municipal Code (“Code”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Colorado House Bill 16-1309, “concerning a defendant’s right to counsel in 

certain cases considered by municipal courts,” recently became effective, which  concluded that 

both the United States and Colorado constitutions provide that an accused person has the right to be 

represented by counsel in criminal prosecutions, and that this constitutional right is interpreted to 

mean that counsel will be provided at municipal court, at a local government’s expense, for indigent 

persons in all cases in which incarceration is a possible penalty; and  

 

WHEREAS, this recent state legislation has prompted the Council to review its Code for 

offenses and/or violations which contain incarceration or imprisonment as a possible penalty, and 

evaluate where such a penalty makes sense and where it is unnecessary; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Council therefore finds that it is desirable and appropriate to amend the 

Code to remove imprisonment or incarceration as a possible penalty for certain violations and 

offense as set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the Council also finds it desirable and appropriate to amend the Code to clean 

up outdated portions as a result of the same and to ensure current compliance with State law as it 

relates to Municipal Court issues, violations and penalties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO as follows: 

 

 Section 1. The City Council incorporates the foregoing recitals as conclusions, facts, 

determinations and findings by the City Council.   

 

Section 2. Section 7-1-110 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Violations and 

penalties, Administration and abatement of nuisances, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 7-1-110. - Violations and penalties. 



  

 

Any person who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, refuses to comply with or resists any of 

the provisions of this Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall 

be subject to the provisions of Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code. Further, the City shall be entitled 

to pursue any other civil or criminal remedy available at law to enforce the provisions of this 

Chapter. 

 

Section 3. Section 7-2-10 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Accumulation to 

constitute nuisances, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 7-2-10. - Accumulation to constitute nuisances. 

 

THE LOCATION OR EXISTENCE OF Whenever there shall be in or upon any lot or 

piece of ground within the limits of the City any damaged merchandise, litter, trash, rubbish, 

garbage, wrecked car, inoperable vehicles or other wrecked vehicles, or an accumulation of junk 

vehicles or junk of any type THEREOF upon any private or public property, except in areas 

specifically zoned in Chapter 16 of this Code for said purposes or otherwise designated by the City 

for such purposes, the existence of any such material or items shall constitute a nuisance and THE 

INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY CAUSING OR CREATING SUCH NUISANCE shall be in 

violation of this Article, AND SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 

IV OF THIS CODE. 

 

Section 4. Section 7-5-70 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Penalties, Animals, 

is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 7-5-70. - Penalties. 

 

(a) Any person who violates any provision of this Article shall be deemed guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall be punished in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 1-

4-20 of this Code. The City Council may adopt by resolution recommended fine schedules 

for violations under this Section.  

 

(b) In addition to charging violations as misdemeanors as described in subsection (a), the City 

shall have the concurrent remedy of charging any person who violates any provision of this 

Article with a noncriminal offense subject to imposition of a penalty assessment pursuant to 

the procedure set forth at Chapter 1, Article VII of this Code. 

 

Section 5. Section 8-1-30 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Amendments, 

Model Traffic Code, is hereby amended with the addition of a new subsection (a)(10.5) to read as 

follows: 

 

Sec. 8-1-30. - Amendments. 

 

(a) Article I of the Model Traffic Code is adopted subject to the following additions, 

modifications and amendments, and the amendments to said code set forth in this Section 

shall take precedence over the literal print copy of the code in the event of conflict: 



  

 

(1) … 

 

(10.5)  Section 1701 is hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 

 

1701. Traffic offenses and infractions classified - penalties - penalty and surcharge schedule.  

 

(1) Except as specifically set forth in this Section 1701, it is a civil traffic infraction for any 

person to violate any of the provisions of this code. Any designation or classification of 

a violation in any other section of this code is inapplicable and expressly superseded by 

this Section 1701. Traffic infractions shall constitute civil matters. The Colorado 

Municipal Court Rules of Procedure shall apply to traffic infraction proceedings, 

except that no warrant for arrest shall be issued for the defendant's failure to appear 

when the only violation charged would constitute a noncriminal traffic infraction and 

the defendant's driver's license is issued by the State of Colorado or any other state 

which participates in the Interstate Nonresident Violator Compact, as codified at 

C.R.S. § 24-60-2101. Instead, the court may enter a judgment of liability by default 

against the defendant for failure to appear, assess any penalty and costs established by 

law and report the judgment to the appropriate state motor vehicle department which 

may assess points against the defendant's driver's license and may take appropriate 

action to ensure that the judgment is satisfied. 

 

(2) For any violation of any provision of this Chapter or the Model Traffic Code adopted 

herein which is a traffic infraction, no trial by jury shall be available, no arrest 

warrant shall be issued for failure to appear to pay, no privilege against self-

incrimination shall apply, the standard of proof shall be a preponderance of the 

evidence, and the conduct of all proceedings applicable to such a violation shall 

otherwise be in conformity with those general applicable to civil matters. 

 

(3) The following violations constitute criminal traffic offenses:  

 

(a) A violation of section 1101 involving driving twenty-five (25) or more miles in 

excess of the lawful speed limit.  

 

(b) A violation of section 1101(8)(a) involving driving twenty-five (25) miles or more in 

excess of the speed limit on any interstate highway.  

 

(c) Violations of sections 1105 (speed contests), 1401 (reckless driving), 1402 (careless 

driving), 1409 (failure to show compulsory insurance), 1413 (eluding a police officer), 

1703 (aiding and abetting a traffic offense) and 1903 (failing to stop for a school bus) of 

the Model Traffic Code, as amended.  

 

(4) Notwithstanding any other provision of this code to the contrary, civil traffic 

infractions as provided in this code shall be subject to the following maximum penalty: 

a fine of $1,000.00. Court costs as authorized by state and local law shall be added to 

the fine.  



  

 

(5) Notwithstanding any other provision of this code to the contrary, criminal traffic 

offenses as provided in this code shall be subject to the following maximum penalties: 

one hundred eighty days (180) imprisonment or fine of $1,000.00 or both. Court costs 

as authorized by state and local law shall be added to any penalty imposed. 

 

Section 6. Section 8-1-30(a)(8) of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Amendments, 

Model Traffic Code, Compulsory insurance, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 8-1-30. - Amendments. 

 

(a) Article I of the Model Traffic Code is adopted subject to the following additions, 

modifications and amendments, and the amendments to said code set forth in this Section 

shall take precedence over the literal print copy of the code in the event of conflict: 

 

(1) … 

 

(8) Section 1409 is hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 

 

1409. Compulsory insurance - penalty. (1) No owner of a motor vehicle or low-power scooter 

required to be registered in this state shall operate the vehicle or permit it to be operated on the 

public highways of this local government when the owner has failed to have a complying policy or 

certificate of self-insurance in full force and effect as required by Sections 10-4-619 and 10-4-716, 

C.R.S. 

 

(2) No person shall operate a motor vehicle or low-power scooter on the public highways of this 

local government without a complying policy or certificate of self-insurance in full force and effect 

as required by Sections 10-4-619 and 10-4-624, C.R.S., as amended. 

 

(3) When an accident occurs, or when requested to do so following any lawful traffic contact or 

during any traffic investigation by a peace officer, no owner or operator of a motor vehicle or low-

power scooter shall fail to present to the requesting officer immediate evidence of a complying 

policy or certificate of self-insurance in full force and effect as required by Sections 10-4-619 and 

10-4-624, C.R.S., as amended. 

 

(4) Any person who violates the provisions of subsection (1), (2) or (3) of this section commits a 

CRIMINAL traffic offense punishable pursuant to Section 8-1-70 of the Salida Municipal Code. 

 

(5) Testimony of the failure of any owner or operator of a motor vehicle or low-power scooter to 

present immediate evidence of a complying policy or certificate of self-insurance in full force and 

effect as required by Sections 10-4-619 and 10-4-624, C.R.S., as amended, when requested to do so 

by a peace officer, shall constitute prima facie evidence, at a trial concerning a violation charged 

under subsection (1) or (2) of this section, that such owner or operator of a motor vehicle or low-

power scooter violated subsection (1) or (2) of this section. 

 

(6) No person charged with violating subsection (1), (2) or (3) of this section shall be convicted if 



  

he produces in court a bona fide complying policy or certificate of self-insurance which was in full 

force and effect, as required by Sections 10-4-619 and 10-4-624, C.R.S., as amended, at the time of 

the alleged violation. 

 

(7) THE COURT MAY SUSPEND UP TO ONE HALF OF THE FINE UPON A SHOWING 

THAT APPROPRIATE INSURANCE AS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO SECTION 10-4-619 

OR 10-4-624, C.R.S., HAS BEEN OBTAINED. THE MINIMUM FINE IMPOSED SHALL 

BE MANDATORY, AND THE DEFENDANT SHALL BE PUNISHED BY A MINIMUM 

MANDATORY FINE OF NOT LESS THAN FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS.  NOTHING IN 

THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO PREVENT THE COURT FROM 

IMPOSING A FINE GREATER THAN THE MINIMUM MANDATORY FINE. 

 

Section 7. Section 8-1-70 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Violation; penalty, 

Model Traffic Code, is hereby deleted in its entirety: 

 

Sec. 8-1-70. - Violation; penalty. 

 

It is unlawful for any person to violate any of the provisions of this Article or the Model Traffic 

Code as amended and adopted herein. Any person convicted of violating any such provisions shall 

be guilty of a misdemeanor and subject to the provisions of Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code. 

Further, the City shall be entitled to pursue any other civil or criminal remedy available at law to 

enforce the provisions of this Chapter.  

 

Section 8. Section 8-2-60 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Restrictions on 

minor drivers, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 8-2-60. - Restrictions on minor drivers. 

… 

       (e) Any person who violates any provision of this Section shall be deemed to have committed a  

            misdemeanor and an unlawful act and, upon conviction thereof, shall be subject to       

            imposition of a penalty assessment in the amount of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00). The  

            Municipal Judge shall promulgate a schedule of penalties for all misdemeanor minor traffic  

            violations contained in this Section. Such schedule shall be prominently posted in the office  

            of the Court Clerk. 

 

Section 9. Section 10-7-30 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Possession and 

consumption of alcohol beverage in certain places, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 10-7-30. - Possession and consumption of alcohol beverages in certain places. 

 

(a) Possession and consumption in public restricted. It is a misdemeanor VIOLATION 

SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE IV OF THIS CODE 

for any person to consume any alcohol beverage or to possess any unsealed or open 

container containing any alcoholic beverage in or on any of the following described places: 

public ways, sidewalks, streets, alleys, parks or parkways; within or upon any public 

portion of a building, grounds or real property operated by any governmental entity within 



  

the City; or upon any parking lot, public or private, generally open to members of the 

public. For the purpose of this subsection, an unsealed or open container shall not include a 

container of vinous liquor that has been resealed pursuant to the provisions of Section 12-

47-411(3.5), C.R.S., as amended, and is clearly recognizable to a police officer as a 

container that has been resealed by the hotel or restaurant license holder. 

 

 Section 10. Section 10-7-70 the Salida Municipal Code, concerning “Possession of 

Cannabis,” is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 10-7-70. - Possession of cannabis. 

 

(a) For the purposes of this Section, the term cannabis shall include all parts of the plant 

Cannabis sativa L., whether growing or not; the seed thereof; the resin extracted from any 

part of such plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt derivative, mixture or 

preparation of such plant, its seeds or resin; but shall not include the mature stalks of such 

plant, fiber produced from its stalks, oil or cake, or the sterilized seed of such plant, which 

is incapable of germination. The term cannabis concentrate means hashish, 

tetrahydrocannabinols or any alkaloid, salt derivative, preparation, compound or mixture, 

whether natural or synthesized, of tetrahydrocannabinols. 

 

(b) It is unlawful to possess one (1) ounce or less of cannabis or cannabis concentrate, and   

           upon conviction thereof, or plea of guilty or no contest thereto, punishment shall not be by   

           imprisonment, but shall be by a penalty assessment of not more than one hundred dollars  

           ($100.00). 

 

(c) It is unlawful TO openly and publicly to display or consume one (1) ounce or less of 

CANNABIS OR cannabis concentrate, and upon conviction thereof, or a plea of guilty or 

no contest thereto, punishment shall be as set out in Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code. 

 

(d) The provisions of this Section shall not apply to any person who possesses or uses 

cannabis or cannabis concentrate pursuant to the Dangerous Drugs Therapeutic Research 

Act 

 

Section 11. Section 11-5-50 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Violation, Trees, is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 11-5-50. - Violation. 

 

 Any person who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, refuses to comply with or resists any of 

the provisions of this Article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 

subject to the provisions of Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code. It shall be unlawful to damage or 

otherwise destroy any park or street tree. Upon conviction or plea of guilty, the individual will be 

charged the costs of repairing or replacement of said tree. 

 

Section 12. Section 11-6-70 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Prohibited acts 

and conditions, Parks and recreation areas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 



  

 

Sec. 11-6-70. - Prohibited acts and conditions. 

 

… 

 

(c) Any person who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, refuses to comply with or resists any of the  

     provisions of this Article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be     

     subject to the provisions of Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code. 

 

Section 13. Section 16-2-100 of the Salida Municipal Code, concerning Violations and 

penalty, Land Use and Development, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 16-2-100. - Violations and penalty. 

 

(a) It shall be unlawful to erect, construct, reconstruct, alter, maintain, or use any building or 

structure or to use any land in violation of any provision of this Chapter. Any person, either 

as owner, lessee, occupant, or otherwise, who violates or interferes in any manner with any 

person in the performance of a right or duty granted or imposed upon him or her by this 

Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable as forth in SUBJECT TO THE 

PROVISIONS OF Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code. 

 

Section 14. Should any one or more sections or provisions of this Ordinance or of the 

Code provisions enacted hereby be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment 

shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance or of such Code 

provision, the intention being that the various sections and provisions are severable. 

 

 Section 15.   Any and all Ordinances or Codes or parts thereof in conflict or inconsistent 

herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; provided, however, 

that the repeal of any such Ordinance or Code or part thereof shall not revive any other section or 

part of any Ordinance or Code provision heretofore repealed or superseded. 

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, ADOPTED and ORDERED PUBLISHED IN 

FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City Council on the ___ 

day of __________, 2019 and set for second reading and public hearing on the _____day 

of__________  

 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, by the City Council on the ______day of _________________, 

2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

CITY OF SALIDA 

 

 

 

By: 

_________________________________ 

                Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST:  

______________________  

  City Clerk 

 

(SEAL) 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the _____ day of 

_____________, 20__, and BY TITLE ONLY, OR IN FULL, after Final 

Adoption on the ____ day of______________, 20__. 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

     City Clerk 
 

 



 REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: February 19, 2019:

AGENDA ITEM NO.

6.c. 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Drew Nelson 

BY:
ITEM:  

Employers Council – Human Resources Consulting Services 

BACKGROUND: 
As part of our discussion to restructure the responsibilities formerly held by the Finance and 
Administrative Services Director, one proposed change would include adding Human Resources 
consulting services.  After reviewing options in the marketplace and a follow-up with staff, it appears 
that these services can be provided by the Employers Council (formerly Mountain States Employers 
Council).  Some information on their scope of services is attached. 

The Employers Council will provide up to 30 hours annually of direct labor to assist staff with 
questions about personnel manuals, performance evaluations, and compensation surveys.  In 
addition, the City will have access to data compiled or prepared by the Employers Council at our 
fingertips.  The Employers Council can also perform work related to 360 degree evaluations of 
personnel, and can assist the City Council in both future hiring as well as current evaluations.  Any 
work in excess of the 30 hours is provided on a time and materials basis, and the City can request 
cost estimates for any work ahead of deciding to move forward with any special project. 

FISCAL NOTE: 
The fiscal impact of this contract with the Employers Council to the City of Salida is for $5,800 as 
apportioned per allocation rules of their organization.  The 2019 Annual Budget for the City of Salida 
did not include an allocation for these services; however, the savings from the vacancy in the 
Finance Director position can be used to offset these costs for 2019 and would not require any 
budget amendment to do so 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of an expenditure of $5,800 to enter into a services agreement with the 
Employers Council.   

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
A City Councilperson should make a motion to approve entering into a contract for professional 
services with the Employers Council, followed by a second and a voice vote. 



EmployersCouncil.org



Employers Council, the nation's largest employers association, has provided expert assistance and 
thoughtful guidance to employers since 1939.  We collaborate with our members to develop 
effective, successful employer-employee relationships by providing "one-stop shopping" in every 
facet of human resources and employment law. 

People make the difference. Our committed team of experienced legal and HR professionals are 
respected industry veterans in their specialized disciplines including employment law, human 
resources, research, facilitation, coaching, training, investigations and negotiation.

Employers Council offers you the broadest array of professional services under one roof. We 
walk alongside our members, offering guidance, support and expertise.

OUR VISION
E�ective, successful employers.

OUR MISSION
We are the professional, cost-e�ective resource of choice for employers 
in all areas of employment law, human resource consulting, training 
and surveys.

OUR VALUES
• We are here to serve our members.
• Our employees are our number one asset.
• We build strong, collaborative relationships with our members

and our communities.
• We provide high quality services to meet the growing and changing 

needs of our members.
• We serve with honesty, respect, and ethical conduct.

WHO WE ARE



EMPLOYMENT LAW
AND REPRESENTATION

TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

MEASURE AND MAXIMIZE 
PERFORMANCE

COMPENSATION 
STRATEGY AND HR DATA

The Employers Council legal team 
has the knowledge and expertise 
you need to stay up-to-speed with 

constantly evolving employment and labor laws 
and best practices. 

• Employment Law Resources, Advice, 
and Consultation

• Federal/State Agency and Other 
Representation

• Workplace Investigations

• Labor Relations

• Immigration Services

Do you need help training and 
developing your workforce for 
maximum performance? Our 

consultants train over 25,000 employees each 
year in a variety of areas including legal 
compliance, HR, and organizational 
development. 

• Legal and HR Training and 
Conferences

• Team Building and Workplace 
Coaching

• Mediation and Facilitation

• HRCI and SHRM Certification

Our HR professionals and 
industrial psychologists help your 
team assess and improve the 

performance of individual employees, teams, or 
your entire organizational workforce.

• Employee Engagement and 
Organization Surveys

• Training Needs Assessment and 
Analysis

•  Leadership Development and 
Consulting

For over 70 years, we have collected 
business, economic, and HR data. Our 
members use this data for policy 

development, benefit design, and compensation 
planning. 

• Total Rewards Planning and Strategy

• HR Best Practices and Metrics

• Compensation Advice and 
Consulting

• Regional and Industry 
Compensation and Benefit Survey 
Data

COMPLIANCE AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

HR EXPERTISE
AND SUPPORT

See how we can help your 
organization with employment law 
challenges including health care, 

immigration, family and medical leave, 
affirmative action, hourly wages, overtime 
requirements, and retirement.  

• A�irmative Action Analysis and 
Planning

• Workplace Safety

• Handbook and Policy Review

• Employment Posters and 
Subscription

We partner with your organization 
to navigate every area of today’s 
increasingly complex human 

resources landscape; from hiring, to training, to 
managing, to career transitions. 

• Day-to-day Advice on Employment 
Questions

• HR Consulting and Strategy

• Payroll Administration, Management 
and Advice

• Pre-employment Screening
and Testing

OUR SOLUTIONS



OUR MEMBERS THE VALUE OF MEMBERSHIP

The collective power of over 4,000 members enables us to offer a depth of expertise and breadth of services that 
cannot be matched, all at a tremendous value over the open market. Membership dues are based on the employer’s 
payroll and offered on a sliding scale, making membership affordable to organizations regardless of size.

Employers Council annual dues are payable in advance and are computed differently for private companies and 
nonprofits than for government entities who do not pay an employer’s share of FICA. Different dues calculations 
may be used for employers who will be accessing our services from multiple locations and small employers with 
10 or fewer employees.

WE ARE READY
TO HELP

CONTACT US TODAY:  800.884.1328

LearnMore@EmployersCouncil.org

• On-call expert assistance in governmental 
regulations, human resources, wage and benefit 
surveys, labor relations, and management 
development.

• Personalized service through a dedicated sta� 
member assigned to your account who can 
answer questions and assemble the resources 
you need.

• Access to our extensive database of wage and 
benefits survey data on more than 400 jobs and 
workplace practices to ground your decisions on 
the compensation and benefits you o�er.  

• Data and statistics used in the development of 
personnel policies and benefit design as well as 
consultation by survey specialists.

• Representation before federal and state agencies.

• Professional support developing sound policies 
and procedures to help your organization 
avoid litigation and utilize best practices.

• A members-only website with instant access 
to practical toolkits and guides, white papers 
on legal and HR issues, interactive forms and 
templates, sample handbooks and policies, 
state law summaries, and more.

• Access to training in the areas of professional 
development, human resources, management, 
leadership, technology, and legal compliance. 

• Alerts on all employment law and HR issues 
that impact your organization.

• Membership earns employees HRCI 
recertification and continued education 
credits.

• And more.

We enhance workforce effectiveness for over 4,000 
members and their employees across the country. 
Employers Council has deep experience supporting 
the specific needs of all three sectors.

• Private Sector – We support private companies 
across all industries, from start-ups to multi-nationals.

• Nonprofit Sector – We have developed a keen 
understanding of the issues that a�ect nonprofit 
employers a�er decades of serving this sector.

• Public Sector – Laws and practices are unique for 
governmental agencies and for organizations with 
elected boards that operate as subdivisions of state 
government.  We understand the employment law 
nuances and practices typical in the public sector.

MEMBERS
BY SIZE

�  10 or fewer
�  11 to 49
�  50 to 199
�  200 to 499
�  500 plus

MEMBERS
BY SECTOR

�  Non-Profit
�  Government
�  For Profit

THE BENEFITS OF BELONGING

I know Employers Council has been a great resource 
for me. Whether I had no idea where to start, or just 
needed confirmation that I was headed in the right 
direction, it is a great service to have.

Heather Hildebrand – City of Cripple Creek

MEMBERS
BY INDUSTRY

Retail
Finance
Public
Construction
Other
Manufacturing

Service



EmployersCouncil.org

COLORADO SPRINGS   /   DENVER   /   LOVELAND   /   SCOTTSDALE   /   SALT LAKE CITY

800.884.1328    /    LearnMore@EmployersCouncil.org



Colorado Springs / Denver / Loveland / Salt Lake City / Scottsdale / 800.884.1328 / EmployersCouncil.org

As a member of  Employers Council, you have access to the resources of the nation’s top employers association. 
We look forward to supporting your success.

Employment Law Support 
• Affirmative Action Advice
• Age Discrimination Issues
• Americans with Disabilities (ADA)
• Business Closings and Layoffs
• COBRA and HIPAA Issues
• Demand Letters 
• Disability Accommodation
• Drug and Alcohol
• EEO Discrimination Complaints
• Employment Agreements
• Family and Medical Leave Act
• Garnishments
• Immigration / Work Authorization
• Compliance
• OSHA
• Release and Waiver Agreements
• Termination Process
• Unemployment Compensation
• USERRA / Veterans’ Rights
• Wage Hour
• Wrongful Discharge
• Administrative Representation in: 

- Civil Rights Charges
- Unemployment Hearings
- Wage Hour Claims 

Surveys 
• Benefits Surveys
• Compensation Surveys
• Employment Practices Surveys

Labor Relations  
and Administrative  
Representation* 
• Collective Bargaining
• Grievance and Arbitration Hearings
• NLRB Proceedings
• Strike Assistance
• Unfair Labor Practice Representation
• Union Avoidance
• Union Organizing Campaigns
 *Labor Relations services may be  
  billed on an hourly basis.

Human Resources
• Appraisal Systems
• Compensation and Benefit Practices
• Day-to-Day Employment Questions
• Downsizing
• Employee Handbooks
• Exit and Transition
• Global HR
• Health Care Reform
• HR Administrative Practices
• HR Metrics
• HR Strategy 
• HR Technology
• On-boarding
• Payroll Advice
• Performance Management
• Policy Manuals
• Recordkeeping
• Recruiting
• Staffing and Selection
• Workplace Violence

Web-Based and Online 
Resources
• Surveys – validated data for over 

4,000 job titles
• FYIs - essential employment law 

topics at federal and state levels
• Employee Handbook Planning 

Guide 
• Federal Record Retention Guide 
• Newsletters, blogs and articles on 

trending employment law and work-
place topics

• “Members Only” website: Interactive 
tools, smart charts, job description 
builder,  white papers, forms, arti-
cles, checklists and templates

Other Resources 
• Annual Planning Packet
• Employee Handbook Planning  

Guide
• Employment Law Resource Guide
• Federal Record Retention Guide
• HR Forms—English and Spanish
• Industry Roundtables
• Monthly Bulletin with the latest in 

Employment Law and HR news
• NLRB Election Petition Updates
• Reference Library
• Special Surveys and Reports
• Toolkits and Checklists
• Video Training Resources
• Employment Law Posters

Employers Council 
Member Benefits



Colorado Springs / Denver / Loveland / Salt Lake City / Scottsdale / 800.884.1328 / EmployersCouncil.org

The Value of  
Employers Council 
Membership

Services Support

HR Practices
Access to our team of 

attorneys and certified 
HR consultants

Guidance on one 
employee matter:

$1,500 - $7,000

Legal Compliance

Representation in EEOC, DOL, 
NLRB, OFCCP, and State Agency 

Complaints: Charges of 
discrimination & harassment 

wage & hour claims
  unemployment hearings

Discrimination charge:
$9,000 - $20,000

FMLA claim:
$3,500 - $12,000

Included

Surveys  Comprehensive salary and 
benefits survey data $2,000 - $8,000 Included

Blue Book
Annually updated  
“Employment Law  

Resource Guide”
$500 Included

Handbook Review Handbook and policy  
HR and legal review $2,500 - $5,000 Included

Online Resources

“Members Only” website:
Interactive tools, smart charts,

job description builder, 
white papers, forms, articles, 

checklists and templates

$2,750 Included

Updates
Instant alerts, 

 weekly Hot Topics, and  
monthly bulletins

$200 Included

$19,450 - $55,450 Regular Membership:
$1,450 - $5,800

$Cost Without
Employers Council 

Membership

Included

Employers Council 
Membership



 

 
Sample Multi-Rater Feedback Report 1 

 

The following report is only a sample.  

Questions asked, number of questions in the survey, 
demographics, and the dimensions will vary throughout 
the report.  

All the survey data has been created for the purpose of 
this sample report ONLY and has no relevance to any 
survey administered. 

 

Pages 3-4: Overall Scoring 

Page 5: Positive and Negative Gaps 

Page 6: High and Low Scores 

Page 7: Dimension Breakdown by Question with 
Historical Comparison 

Page 8: Open Ended Questions 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Multi-Rater Feedback Report
John Doe
8/10/2017

SA
MPL

E



10

Presented on the following pages are the results of the multi-rater feedback process completed by you and your raters.
The use of multiple raters increases the reliability and validity of the conclusions of this report. This report can help
you to:

Encourage candid and honest communication between you and your colleagues
Help you identify your professional strengths and developmental opportunities
Give you the opportunity to improve your skills by being more aware of others' perceptions and observations of
your performance
Guide your conversations with your colleagues to ensure you remain informed of their observations and
suggestions

Strongly Disagree

Disagree

Slightly Disagree

Slightly Agree

Agree

Strongly Agree

About Your Report

1

2

3

4

5

6

Your Respondents Rating Scale
This assessment used the following rating scale
when raters provided their feedback.

The following respondents were invited to
participate in your multi-rater feedback
process.

Self

Total Respondents

Staff Member 5

1

John Doe, August 10, 2017

2

SA
MPL

E



John Doe, August 10, 2017

3

Self
Staff Members

Scoring Radar

SA
MPL

E



Scoring Overview

Developing Self &
Others

Dependability

Task Orientation

Emotional
Control/Stability

Information
Management

Person
Orientation

Management
Functions

Innovation/
Openness

Delivering
Results

Communication

John Doe, August 10, 2017

4

SA
MPL

E



John Doe, August 10, 2017

5

Negative GapsNegative Gaps

1 Person Orientation Gives the authority to carry out job responsibilities. 2.81 5.00 -2.19

2 Innovation/Openness
Fosters an environment that encourages innovation
and the development of new ideas. 1.99 4.00 -2.01

3
Developing Self &
Others

Coaches employees and helps them improve overall
work performance. 2.10 4.00 -1.90

RankRank CompetencyCompetency BehaviorBehavior StaffStaff
MemberMember SelfSelf GapGap

Positive GapsPositive Gaps

1 Dependability Stands up for values and principles. 4.87 1.00 3.87

2 Management Functions
Analyzes relevant data and information in
appropriate amounts when making decisions. 4.33 1.00 3.33

3 Information Management Keeps people informed about organizational plans
and developments.

4.11 1.00 3.11

RankRank CompetencyCompetency BehaviorBehavior StaffStaff
MemberMember SelfSelf GapGap

Positive & Negative Gaps

SA
MPL

E



John Doe, August 10, 2017

6

Ten Lowest Rated BehaviorsTen Lowest Rated Behaviors

1 Innovation/Openness
Fosters an environment that encourages innovation and the development of
new ideas. 1.99

2
Management
Functions Effectively manages people. 2.00

3 Delivering Results Displays a commitment to continuous improvement. 2.02

RankRank CompetencyCompetency BehaviorBehavior AverageAverage

Ten Highest Rated BehaviorsTen Highest Rated Behaviors

1 Communication Listens actively to internal and external customers. 5.24

2 Dependability Responds to my questions/concerns in a timely manner. 5.23

3 Developing Self & Others Eagerly pursues new knowledge, skills, and methods. 5.22

RankRank CompetencyCompetency BehaviorBehavior AverageAverage

High & Low Scores (Does not include self-ratings)

SA
MPL

E



John Doe, August 10, 2017

7

Individuals high on this competency tend to actively attend to what others are saying;
verbally express thoughts in a clear, pleasant, and straightforward manner; and are
effective in presenting material to groups of people.

Communication

SA
MPL

E



John Doe, August 10, 2017

21

Justo ut luctus cursus fusce.

Pede! Velit turpis leo metus.

Mauris. Faucibus risus wisi nibh.

Tempus vulputate praesent donec ante.

Mattis posuere posuere lorem est.

Staff Member ResponsesStaff Member Responses

Ultrices sit non? Justo a.

Justo non fermentum accumsan, eget.

Laoreet quis. Euismod tempor lectus.

Convallis ultricies auctor consequat ultricies.

Arcu facilisis lacus vulputate? Aenean.

Staff Member ResponsesStaff Member Responses

Please describe THREE AREAS YOU BELIEVE ARE IN NEED OF
IMPROVEMENT of the individual you are providing feedback.

Please describe the THREE GREATEST STRENGTHS of the individual you
are providing feedback.

SA
MPL

E



John Doe, August 10, 2017

22

Development Planning PreparationDevelopment Planning Preparation
 

Insert questions and charts here.
 
 

SA
MPL

E



 

FEBRUARY 2019 STAFF REPORTS 

 

City Administrator –  

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

City Clerk –  

- The Deputy City Clerk is very happy to have hired a new Municipal Court Clerk and 

Assistant Deputy City Clerk.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Police Department – 

- Alec Coscarella, who has been attending the Pueblo Police Academy, graduated 

February 15, 2019.  He began his training in Salida on February 18, 2019. 

- Office Harry Peele is now working as an SRO in the Salida School District. He will 

be replacing Officer CJ Meseke who will be moving back to patrol after nearly two 

years as SRO. 

- Working on getting caught up on training and completing POST mandated training. 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Fire Department –  

- Salida Fire’s 18-year old Rescue Truck has a new home.  After listing it for three years, 

we were able to sell it to Florence Fire Protection District.  The truck will be housed in 

Penrose and run on motor vehicle accidents on Highways 50 and 115, for which it was 

designed. 

- All the steel for the multi-use facility has been erected.  The metal roof and siding are 

now being applied. 

- Kathy Rohrich, a 13-year career firefighter, was promoted to the position of Fire 

Inspector and began her duties on February 13. 

- On Friday, February 15, we conducted practical testing and oral boards for our open 

firefighter positions. 

- The weekend of February 9-10, there was a potential for a major incident with natural 

gas service. Communication during this time was key and I (Doug Bess) felt that all 

the entities were kept in the loop until the issue was resolved. 

 

 

 



______________________________________________________________________________ 

Public Works –  

- Administration: 

o Design coordination and bid packet preparation on 2019 street projects. 

o Design coordination and bid packet preparation on 2019 concrete maintenance 

project. 

o Design coordination and bid packet preparation on 2019 asphalt and crack 

sealing project. 

o Coordination with CDOT on US-50 Phase IV streetscape bid package. 

o CDOT Regional TPR attendance week of February 4th. General summary 

includes R5 project updates and 2019 TRIP project planning process.  It is 

recommended that an elected official and/or City Administrator also consider 

quarterly attendance in 2019 to help show local support for desired projects 

during this planning cycle that only occurs once every three years. 

o Scoping collection system engineering study.  Pull consumption and plant flow 

data for analysis. 

- Streets: 

o Vehicle maintenance. 

o Assist with roadway repairs including concrete patching. 

o Several pot hole repairs (weather and material dependent). 

o Coordination with CDOT on snow removal IGA for 291. 

- Water/Wastewater: 

o Several water main/service leaks including a line on lower F Street. 

o Routine water meter service work. 

o Pump replacement start-up at galleries 

o Pipe shelving/organizing at water shed. 

- Parks/Facilities: 

o Park equipment repairs. 

o Public restroom repairs. 

o Assist with camera and inspection work of Touber sewer laterals. 

o Pump facility repairs. 

o Vehicle maintenance. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Parks/Recreation –  

- Met with Cloward H2O, the soaking pool/splash pad consultant. 

- Requested financial assistance for water fitness equipment and received a $5,000 

commitment from Live Well Chaffee County. 

- Attended a Skate Park committee meeting, where we discussed funding options. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Community Development –  

- The Community Development staff has been reduced by more than 1/3 as Kristi 

is out on an extended leave.  Salida is missing the Best Public Employee of the 

Year.  

- Planning Commission will have a full agenda this month with a conditional use; 

multiple principal structure; and two minor subdivisions requests. 



- The Future 50 process has taken a short hiatus as Community Builder staff are 

on vacation.  We are working on a preferred draft and are looking to meet with 

business owners again in March. 

- Bill Almquist attended the Saving Places conference in Denver for three days at 

the start of February.  Saving Places is all about historic preservation in 

Colorado.  Through a grant and city funding, we were also able to send two HPC 

members:  Keith Krebs and Patrick Regan. 

- We are scheduling a joint work session with the Historic Preservation Commission and 

Council for March 18 to discuss amending the Code to change the HPC role. 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

SteamPlant –  

- The SteamPlant/Scout Hut hosted 87 events in January, including two weddings. 

- Installed new lighting in theater balconies. 

- Purchased and installed new computers for staff. 

- Remote live broadcasting for channel 191.   


	February 22, 2019 Agenda
	February 5, 2019 Minutes
	2019 Concrete Maintenance Project
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Support Letter CMC
	Memo Snow Angel
	Snow Angel Liquor License Application
	Snow Angel Lease
	Memo Little Cambodia
	Little Cambodia Liquor License Application
	Little Cambodia Lease and Property Diagram
	Memo Resolution 2019-09
	Resolution 2019-09
	Exhibit A
	Memo Ordinance 2019-02
	Ordinance 2019-02
	Untitled
	Treat Annexation Report
	Memo Ordinance 2019-03
	Ordinance 2019-03
	Exhibit A
	Memo Ordinance 2019-04
	Ordinance 2019-04
	Exhibit A
	Rezoning Report
	Sketch Plan
	Annexation Agreement
	Memo Tom LeBaron Appeal
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit E
	Exhibit F
	Exhibit G
	Exhibit H
	Exhibit I
	Exhibit J
	Exhibit K
	Memo Ordinance 2019-05
	Ordinance 2019-05
	Memo HRCS
	Employers Council Document
	Staff Reports




